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Morse plc

Financial Highlights

« Continuing Group revenue down 4% to £297.0 million (2005; £309.2 million)

Operating profit "’ from continuing operations up 34% to £7.4 million {2005: £5.5 million}, with
operating profit from services up 14% on the prior year period

Profit before tax ? for continuing operations up 17% to £8.0 million (2005: £6.8 million)

Profit after tax of £4.2 million {(2005: £1.2 million)

Net funds balance at 30 June 2006 of £25.7 million (2005: £36.3 million) ®

Adjusted basic earnings per share of 5.0p (2005: 4.2p) ¥

Proposed final dividend of 2.7p per share (2005: 2.6p per share) resulting in a total dividend for
the year up 4.0% at 3.9p per share (2005: 3.75p per share)

Statutory
e Operating profit £12.8 million (2005: £2.2 million)

e Profit before tax £6.0 million (2005: £2.9 million)
e Basic EPS 2.6p (2005: 0.8p)

Business Highlights

¢ Transformation of Group creates the opportunity for a new structure where Morse pic now
oversees the operating businesses of:
- Morse’s core operations: forming a single advisory & execution professional services firm
and targeting a doubling of percentage operating margin in the medium term
- Monitise, Morse’s secure mobile banking applications business: also to operate as stand-
alone business with the potentia! to generate significant revenues and operating profits
within the medium term

Note 1 £7.4 million continuing profit excludes all exceptional items and includes the loss of the joint ventures of £0.4 million (2005: £0.5
milkion} — please refer to page 40

Note 2  Excludes all exceptional items and includes total net financing income of £0.6 million for 2006 (2005: £1.3 million} - please refer to
page 40

Note 3 Please refer to Note 33 on page §3

Note 4  Please refer to Note 4 on page 58 for adiusted basic earnings per share
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About the Group

The Group comprises of Morse, an advisory & execution professional services firm, and Monitise, which
provides mobile banking solutions.

The Group was established in 1983. It is headquartered in the UK and employs 1,691 people in 10
countries™.

*year ended 30 June 2006

Morse

Morse delivers Management Consulting, Applications Cons'ulting and Infrastructure Consulting to clients
around the world that enables organisational change, improved efficiency and greater value from IT
investment.

Morse's proposition is based on innovation and quality, led by the demands of clients in financial
services, media & communications, commercial and other markets. Its breadth and depth of expertise in
specialist business domains, key technologies and partnerships ensures a close, effective, trust-based
working relationship with these clients.

The business has three streams:
Management Consulting

Advises on business and operational strategy, including business process re-engineering, mergers and
acquisitions, and compliance.

Applications Consulting

Advises on business intelligence and knowledge management, and provides data management,
application support and development services.

Infrastructure Consulting

Helps clients realise benefits of IT against business need, through optimising data centres, supply chain
infrastructures and advising on emerging technologies.

Monitise

Monitise Group Limited was established by Morse to take advantage of the developing mobile banking
market. Its joint ventures with LINK Group Holdings Limited — MONILINK™ and mobileATM® — are
pioneering adoption of mobile banking in the UK, and there is significant overseas interest in
implementing its technology, using a franchise model.
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Evolution of the Group

1983-1988 Corporate personal computing

* Morse established to sell personal computers in London

1989-1998 Enterprise computing

» Key partnerships established with Sun Microsystems, HP, Oracle & IBM

o Systems and enterprise management services, software consulting

s Geographic expansion

1999-2003 Technology integration

¢ Becomes listed company

* Acquires own software development capabilities

» Acquires value-added resourcing capability

2004-2005 Consulting, technology and support services

* mobileATM Limited established as a joint venture between Morse and LINK
Interchange Network Limited
Acquisitions of CSTIM and Diagonal add management and business consulting
Disposal of French reseller operation

* Monitise Limited established as the international trading company for the
mobileATM® product

2006 Specialist advisory and execution consultancy

¢ Single brand engaging with clients worldwide

* Separate Monitise business, focused on mobile banking opportunities

» Disposal of German and Austrian reseller operations
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Chairman’s statement

This year the Group has continued to make significant progress in the transition of its core business, from
its origins as an IT hardware reseller to a Group delivering consulting, technology and support. It is now
in a position where these operations will become a single, unified advisory & execution professional
services firm operating under a single Morse brand.

In parallel with the transition of the core business, the Group has successfully developed its secure
mobile banking applications business such that it is now at a stage where it can begin to generate
revenues.

The Group will now operate around these two separate businesses of Morse and Monitise.

Results

Group revenue from continuing operations for the year to 30 June 2006 was £297.0 million (2005: £309.2
million). Operating profit before exceptional items from continuing operations was £7.4 million (2005: £5.5
million}, with operating profit from our services business increasing 14% on the prior year period. Profit
before taxation and exceptional items from continuing operations was £8.0 million (2005: £6.8 million).
The Group generated cash from operations of £1.8 million (2005: £1.9 million). The net funds balance at
30 June 2006 was £25.7 million {2005: £36.3 million).

The statutory profit before tax was £6.0 million after exceptional charges of £0.8 million, net interest
income of £0.6 million and a loss of £1.2 million from discontinued operations.

Morse Germany was sold subsequent to the year-end and is shown in the accounts as a discontinued
operation. Its assets and liabilities have been disclosed as 'held for sale’.

A final dividend of 2.7p (2005: 2.6p) will be proposed for shareholder approval at the Annual General
Meeting to be convened on 9 November 2006 and, subject to shareholder approval, will be paid to
shareholders on the register as at 6 Qctober 2006. The increase in the proposed dividend is being
restricted to 4% as we are aiming to resume capital growth as the primary driver of shareholder value.

Planned changes to Group structure

Over the last few years the Group has been transforming itseif from a reseller to a consulting, technology
and support company. We have undertaken this transformation in order to provide our substantial biue
chip customer base with the broader offerings they now require, combining hardware, software and
consultancy. We have managed this transition by a combination of organic development and acquisition.
The acquisitions, together with the selective disposals we have made, have enabled us to accelerate the
transformation process, and our financial controls have allowed the Group to remain consistently cash-
generative, at the operating profit level.

In instances where the case for transitioning specific businesses has not been sufficiently compelling, in
terms of the required resource and investment, and where their disposal could accelerate the overall
development of the Group, we have disposed of those businesses. This was demonstrated in the
divestment of our French and our German and Austrian reselling businesses in July 2005 and July 2006
respectively.

We now have the framework in place for the remaining significant current activities and geographies to
become important components of a stand-alone advisory & execution professional services firm.

In the last three and a half years, we have also successfully exploited our in-house intellectual property
capability to develop our secure mobiie banking applications business, Monitise. We believe that
Monitise has the potential to generate significant revenues and operating profits within the medium term.
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Given the significant opportunities we see for this business both in the UK and overseas, and given that it
is now at a stage where it can begin to generate revenues, it will now also form a stand-alone business
alongside Morse’s professional services business.

These two businesses will operate as distinct entities.

Morse

As an advisory & execution professional services business, Morse’s services are focused on three main
areas: Management Consulting, Applications Consulting and Infrastructure Consulting. We will continue
to manage the business broadly along these lines in the short term as we strengthen our existing sector
vertical capabhilities in four key markets: financial services, media & communications, commercial and
public sector. Eventually we will move to a client-driven vertical model.

This business will operate under one brand, with one culture, utilising a unified client franchise and will
deliver in a consistent style and develop its people with a single co-ordinated talent management
process. It will be a specialist advisory & execution firm with thought leadership in its chosen sectors and
emerging information technology. It wil) aim to deliver total solutions to its clients and to attract and retain
the best talent available.

Overall, this business, in the year ended 30 June 2006, had revenue on continuing operations of £297.0
million and, excluding central costs of £4.3 million, made an operating profit on continuing operations of
£14.9 million. We believe this business can, and should, move to operating margins that are consistent
with other established advisory & execution firms and we therefore aim to match or exceed industry
benchmarks and double the margin percentage from its current level in the medium term.

Kevin Alcock will become CEO of this business. Kevin is a founder of CSTIM, which we acquired in April
2004, and has 20 years’ experience of working in leading professional services companies. He will report
to Duncan Mclntyre and will take day-to-day operational responsibility for this business unit.

Monitise

Monitise is an exciting and substantiial business opportunity based around secure mobile banking
applications. Alastair Lukies is the CEO and co-founder of this business. He has a proven track record of
developing businesses. He will remain responsible for the day-to-day running of the business and will
report to Duncan Mclntyre.

Morse plc
With the separation of the Group'’s activities into two distinct operating businesses, Morse and Monitise, a
holding company structure will remain in place to oversee the performance of both businesses.

We are currently reviewing the level of resource and governance cost required at the holding company
level and are in the process of allocating resource, as appropriate, from the centre to each of the two
operating businesses in line with their respective requirements.

Duncan Mcintyre will remain CEO of this holding company as well as acting as Executive Chairman of
each of the two operating businesses.

Richard Lapthorne
Chairman
30 August 2006
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Operating review

This was an important period for the Group as we reached the culmination of the transition strategy we
have been following for several years, in line with changes in IT investment and the changing needs of
our clients.

Management Consulting
Management Consulting comprises four businesses: CSTIM, Morse 3, SkillsHub and Morse Transaction
Services.

This was another good year for Management Consulting as we continued to grow and develop. Our
revenue increased to £14.1 million (2005:; £12.5 million) and operating profit was steady at £2.2 million
(2005: £2.3 million).

The business recovered in the UK after a slow first quarter and overseas operations, particularly in
Australia and South Africa, produced a strong performance. We are expanding operations in Continental
Europe, having established a new French business to complement assignment work carried out in
France, Luxembourg, Germany, The Netherlands and Switzerland. Qur strategy of developing a global
specialist consultancy business serving the investment industry remains a clear differentiator and
extremely attractive to our clients.

CSTIM

CSTIM specialises in the provision of strategy and business improvement consultancy services to the
investment industry. It delivered another strong performance, slightly exceeding expectations for the year.
We began the year expecting a period of consolidation after the rapid growth of the previous two years
and our move to new offices in London. With the continuing maturity of the business, we feel the
foundations are now in place to push forward again. During the year, demand for cutsourcing services
slowed but the business showed its flexibility by winning an increased number of mandates in the areas
of hedge funds, retail funds, private client business and life and pensions business.

The growth and profitability of CSTIM Australia has been most encouraging and, following that success,
we are now pushing ahead with the launch of our presence in Singapore. CSTIM South Africa has had
another excellent year, delivering a 100% increase in operating profit compared to 2005. The effect of
this was, however, muted by adverse movements in the exchange rate.

We have also made good progress in further developing our business in Continental Europe. Over the
past year, we have completed assignment work with clients in Luxembourg, France, Germany, The
Netheriands and Switzeriand. We recently recruited a highly skilled team in France, with professional
services experience, to form CSTIM France, resulting in three new clients within the first month of trading.
We believe that this strategic move will assist us to further develop our relationships with a number of
French global and domestic institutions.

CSTiM’s strategy of developing a globai specialist consultancy business serving the investment industry
remains an important differentiator and we are seeing increasing opportunities to share our skilis and
expertise across our various office locations.

Morse Si
Morse SI, our applications architecture, integration and implementation business, made good progress
during the year ended 30 June 2006, delivering 11% of revenue in Management Consulting (2005: 5%).

Morse Sl has built up a solid set of credentials based on the delivery of some quality work and we now
have a strong team in place to drive the business forward.

This is only the second full year that Morse Sl has been in operation and we are increasingly seeing the
benefits that an offering that combines business and IT consultancy can deliver to our clients. Morse S)
also provides a critical link to the services offered by Morse Technology & Integration around applications
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and infrastructure and we continue to improve our leverage of these capabilities within our biue chip
client base.

SkillsHub

SkillsHub, our resource placement business which services the Financial Services sector, has made
steady progress during 2006. 1t continues to provide strong support to both CSTIM and Morse SI, and
contributed 14% of revenue for Management Consulting in the year ended 30 June 2006 (2005: 15%).

Morse Transaction Services

Morse Transaction Services, which provides consulting services to organisations undertaking merger or
acquisition activities, contributed 4% of overall Management Consulting revenue in the year ended 30
June 2006 (2005: 2%).

Business Consulting

Business Consulting was created from the consulting business of Morse UK together with the
consultancy businesses of Diagonal following its acquisition in August 2004. 1t has three main lines of
business: Diagonal Consulting Global (covering our Oracle, SAP, enterprise service management and
information management capability}; Delphis (which specialises in providing resources at the
infrastructure layer, mainly to the banking sector); and Marshall-Witkins (an IT recruitment business).

In the year ended 30 June 2006 sales were £79.1 million (2005: £60.4 million} and operating profit before
exceptional items was £5.8 million (2005; £5.3 million). The performance in the year ended 30 June 2006
has been distorted by the fact that Diagonal had only been owned for 10 months in the previous year.
When this is taken into account, the effect is that revenue growth was approximately 19% and operating
profit growth is more substantial than the 10% shown.

Diagonal Censulting Global

in a year of continued transformation, we integrated the Morse and Diagonal consulting businesses
under a new management team, thereby transforming an SAP-dominated services business into an
advisory & execution professional services firm delivering solutions across CRM, ERP, logistics, business
intelligence, information management and support across a variety of technologies and to a substantial
number of customers.

The business achieved an operating profit of £2.4 million on sales of £56.0 million in the year. Gross
margin was 25%. Headcount at the year end was 360, 99 and 39 in the UK, Asia and USA respectively,
with access to a far greater pool of associates and contractors.

We consolidated Asian operations around the Kuala Lumpur office by transferring the vast majority of
resource from Singapore. This simplified the business and created a truly global support operation across
each of our three main territories: UK, Asia and USA.

The new global resourcing operation has enabled us to compete on cost whilst continuing to lead on
value and it has resulted in some strong new client wins. However, we are aware of the need to further
rejuvenate our presence in the SAP market in order to improve market share. We did not fully capitalise
on sales opportunities in this area towards the end of the year and, combined with the deferral of some
client projects, this had an adverse effect on utilisation and gross margin.

We have recently established an Information Management practice. This area of the market is expanding
rapidly. With our own niche Wisdom™ product, together with our alliances with leading vendors and the
substantial skills and intellectual property we hold within the business, we are well positioned to grow this
practice over the coming year. Wisdom™ itself continues to develop well and revenue within the
Wisdom™ division was £6.3 million (2005: £4.4 miliion) and operating profit was £0.9 million (2005: £0.6
million).

Cross-selling between core Morse divisions is improving and we believe this will develop further over the

current year supporting our transition strategy.
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Delphis

Deiphis completed a strong year, with an over-achievement against its operating profit target and
revenue growth of 10%. It retained all of its major customers and acquired significant new clients in the
banking sector. Revenue for the year ended 30 June 2006 was £19.6 million (2005; £17.8 million).

This business has been tightly managed. We initiated and completed a back office restructure to
underpin scaleable and profitable growth, and reduced staff attrition rates through a package of
management, communication and training initiatives. Headcount grew over the year from 284 to 340.
Average fee rates have increased slightly despite rate contraction in the helpdesk and deskiop
engineering areas. This has been achieved by providing a broader service offering and increased value
to our customers.

Marshall-Wilkins

Marshall-Wilkins, a recruitment business that helps clients source both contract and permanent IT
resource, had a disappointing year. In particular, the second half performance was poor and we have
now changed the management in this business.

UK Technology & Integration

Revenue for the year decreased by 25% to £140.7 million (2005: £188.5 million), with operating profit
before exceptional items increasing to £2.6 million (2005: £1.2 million). The second half of 2006 has seen
a strong recovery as the business established itseif after the restructuring. In the second haif, the
business achieved operating profits of £2.0 million compared to £0.6 million in the first half. Headcount
was 230 at 30 June 2006 (2005: 337).

In the year to 30 June 2005, we restructured our UK Technology & Integration business so that it was in
a position to respond effectively to the ongoing challenges of product and price commoditisation. In the
wake of this restructuring, Morse Technology & Integration (“MT&I") began the year with a plan to: focus
on selected accounts and growth markets; build technology propositions to increase the services attach
rate and services integrated products; implement a more efficient sales and marketing model; drive a
Morse-led, vendor-supported marketing plan; and consolidate the back office for quality, productivity and
agility.

Our new management team began to execute these strategies during the first quarter of the year. The
sales team was restructured into client-focused teams working on selected major and growth accounts
and a low-cost sales engine was created to transact lower margin business efficiently and profitably. Four
MT&I technology propositions were created and taken to market: Servers, Storage, Software and
Security. A number of cost efficiencies were implemented, notably the centralisation of our back office
function and the integration of our customer support team with our low-cost sales engine.

In addition to several high-profile business wins, including a contract to implement Egenera Blade Frame
technology worth over £4.0 million, we have increased our technology and services footprint within a
number of existing customers. Importantly, we closed the year with a pipeline of 30 live opportunities in
partnership with Morse Business Consulting.

The success of the restructuring and in particular the growth in services means that it is now possible to
combine the services business in this unit with Delphis. This will create an extremely strong business
unit.

Europe

Continuing European revenue rose by 31% to £56.8 million (2005: £43.4 million). This unit now
comprises Morse Spain and Morse Ireland after the sale of Morse France in July 2005 and Morse
Germany in July 2006.

In the year ended 30 June 20086, revenue increased in Spain by 19% to £37.0 million. Since acquiring our
Spanish business in 2001, this business has more than doubled its revenues and profits. It is very much
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client and consultancy led, as opposed to a reseller model of being product and manufacturer led.
Software and services accounted for 70% of Spain’s gross margin. We have invested in two new
consultancy areas, Security and Service Management, and, together with our existing business, we
believe these will position us well in the Spanish market. At 30 June 2006, headcount in Spain had
increased to 135 (2005: 86).

The Irish business performed strongly in the year with revenues of £19.8 million. While overall headcount
in Ireland remains constant, the management team has been strengthened and reorganised to meet the
demands of the market. At 30 June 2006, Morse Ireland employed 37 people (2005: 37).

On 24 July 2006 we announced the sale of Morse GmbH and Morse IT Solutions Austria GmbH (*Morse
Germany”) to the becom Group. The consideration, net of the cash staying inside Morse Germany, is
€1.0 million (£0.7 million). Most of the business in Morse Germany was based around reselling and
infrastructure services and this factor, taken together with the infrastructure trading environment in
Germany and the fact that the disposal of this business could accelerate the development of the Group,
led us to the decision to divest of this business. Sales in Germany fell by 11% to £70.2 million and, at the
year-end, staff numbers in Morse Germany had been reduced to 166 (2005: 172).

Monitise

Monitise, the Group’s secure mobile banking appiications business, has made substantiai progress in the
year. The loss incurred in the year ended 30 June 2006 was £3.2 million (2005: 2.2 million). It has now,
after three and a half years of intensive development, reached a key stage of its evolution. It represents
an excellent example of our successful intellectual property development, broadening the range of
services we offer and ensuring we are well placed to take advantage of the opportunities presented by
the emerging mobile commerce market. The first active deployment of the Monitise mobile banking
platform (branded MONILINK™} is in the UK through mobileATM Limited, Morse’s 50:50 joint venture
with LINK Group Holdings Limited. MONILINK™ is being integrated into the first wave of UK banks and
building societies that will provide the service to their own customers under their own brands.

The LINK network could provide access to a card base of 85 million and we anticipate having 440,000
MONILINK™ customers in 2007 assuming a 2.8% service adoption, growing to over 5 million potential
MONILINK™ customers in 2010 assuming an 8% take-up. Our current forecasts, in association with our
partners, suggest that adoption rates for mobile phone banking services could be faster than those
refating to the use of physical ATMs or internet banking.

The service is being rolled out in a phased approach, which commenced recently with a group of first
direct customers in July 2008. Initial services, which are accessed securely from consumers’ mobile
telephones, include balance enquiries and mini-statements. The ability to perform mobile top-ups,
including top-ups for family and friends, is now available to HSBC customers, bringing access to a
banking card base of over 12 million. We are also at a well progressed stage in our discussions with
other LINK members including Alliance & Leicester, Barclays, Lloyds TSB and Royal Bank of Scotland.

MONILINK™ has been successful in all of its supplier selections and comparisons with banks and
telecoms operators. An industry user forum has been established to ensure that services made available
through MONILINK™ will appeal to the broadest possible consumer base. This forum already has senior
level commitment and representation from Alliance & Leicester, Barclays, Derbyshire Building Society,
first direct, Lloyds TSB, HSBC and Royal Bank of Scotland.

We foresee significant opportunities overseas for this unique mobile banking platform and have
estabiished Monitise Limited to capitalise on these. Monitise owns all inteilectual property and
development resources and is owned 85% by Morse and 15% by LINK. We have developed a
franchising mode!, with an upfront fee, minimum annual fees and a percentage of the revenues, for
maximising international growth and are excited by the increasing pipeline of opportunities.

1G
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Currently, 12 new countries are being evaluated for suitability. We have already commenced discussions
in 8 countries. Of these eight, we have engaged with key switch providers in 4 and all of these have
expressed their intention to switch mobileATM® transactions in their respective territories.

Out of 14 local partners (“Local Service Providers” or “LSPs”), 8 have been identified and formally
engaged in a number of territories, of which 4 have been selected and are currently engaged with us in
negotiations around preferred supplier agreements. Of the 4 that have entered into discussions with us
around a mobileATM® franchise, 2 are in an advanced state and 1 the UK has been formalised. Our
strong existing partnerships with organisations such as BT Global Services are facilitating our planned
giobal deployment, both in terms of credibility and execution expertise.

The market is developing rapidly and we are moving to respond appropriately. We have established a
100% owned company, Monitise Business Solutions Limited (“MBS”) to further utilise our unique
intellectual property. Monitise now has in excess of 40 employees driving both the UK launch and
developing international opportunities. Mobile is now widely confirmed as the fifth channel for retail
banking customers and we are very pleased with the robust Ecosystem model we have already
established in this rapidly developing space, with substantial support from key participants.

Processes and people
At the year-end, Group headcount stood at 1,691 (2005; 1,730). This figure has since been reduced by
166 following the disposal of Morse Germany.

As we enter this exciting new phase for Morse, we would like to thank our people once again for their
expertise and professionalism. It is their skills and dedication that will help shape the future success of
the Group.

Outiook

The current financial year has started satisfactorily and, with the new focus on delivering the final pieces
in establishing Morse as an advisory & execution professional services firm, together with the
developments at Monitise, we are confident of good progress both in the current financial year and in the
years ahead.

Duncan Mcintyre
Chief Executive Officer
30 August 2006
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Financial review

In the year to 30 June 2006, Morse has adopted IFRS in preparing its Group Accounts and as such the
focus of the statements is on continuing operations. Accounting policies used in the preparation of these
accounts are consistent with the policies adopted on transition to IFRS,

In the year to 30 June 20086, revenue from continuing operations decreased to £297.0 million and
operating profit from continuing operations before tax, amortisation of intangible assets and exceptional
items increased to £7.4 miilion. Net funds at 30 June 2006 were £25.7 million.

2006 2005
Operating Operating
£ million Revenue profit* Revenue profit*
Management Consuiting 141 2.2 12.5 2.3
Business Consulting 79.1 5.8 60.4 5.3
Europe (excluding Germany &
France) 56.8 3.4 43.4 3.3
UK Technoiogy & Integration 140.7 26 188.5 1.2
ECM (Wisdom™) 6.3 0.9 4.4 0.6
Group Overhead - {4.3) - (5.0)
Morse Core 297.0 10.6 309.2 7.7
Monitise - {3.2) - (2.2)
297.0 7.4 309.2 5.5

* Excluding all exceptional items.

Exceptional items — total operations
Net exceptional costs before tax amounted to £0.8 million. This amount is analysed in more detail in
Note 3 of the financial statements.

The major items included within this category are noted befow.

French disposal
The disposal of Morse France SAS (“Morse France”) gave rise to a pre-tax loss of £7.1million.

Trading balances

With the changing shape of our business, and, in particular, the reduced level of infrastructure business
(a reduction of approximately £300 million per annum since its peak), credit balances are no longer being
created at the same level as they are released. In accordance with normal accounting practices, these
releases are made when confirmed with the appropriate counterparty. We announced with our interim
results that an amount of £13.1 million (2005: £1.1 million) has been credited to the income statement.
This has been highlighted because of the magnitude of the release in this period.

Restructuring costs
Restructuring costs relate primarily to property costs of £3.0 million and people costs of £1.5 million.

Impairment of goodwill of Morse Germany

The completion of the sale of Morse GmbH and Morse IT Solutions Austria GmbH on 21 July 2006 has
indicated a need for an impairment in the carrying value of goodwill of £2.3 million and this is included in
the results for the year ended 30 June 2006,

12
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Acquisitions and disposals
There have been two major changes in the Group’s operating entities compared to the prior period as set
out below:

France
On 12 July 2005, Morse soid Morse France.

Diagonal Limited (formerly Diagonal Plc)
The year ended 30 June 2006 performance includes a full year of trading from the Diagonal Limited
acquisition (completed on 27 August 2004), whilst the prior period only included 10 months of trade.

Post Balance Sheet Event

Following the period end, on 24 July 2006, the Group announced the sale of Morse GmbH and Morse IT
Solutions Austria GmbH (“Morse Germany”) to the becom Group. The consideration, net of the cash
staying inside Morse Germany, was €1.0 million (£0.7 million). Most of the business in Morse Germany
was based around reselling and infrastructure services and, taken together with the infrastructure trading
environment in Germany, the likely financial investment and management time that would have been
required to transition Morse Germany and the fact that the disposal of this business could accelerate the
development of the Group, led to the decision to dispose of this business. During the year, sales in
Germany had fallen 11% to £70.2 million.

Morse Germany has been classified as a discontinued operation and therefore is excluded from
continuing operations. As a result of this transaction, the carrying value of the goodwill in the year ended
30 June 2006 accounts has been reduced to £1.6 million.

Taxation

The tax expense of £1.8 million represents an effective rate of 30% (2005: 59%). The underlying
consolidated tax rate was 78% (2005: 86%). The high underlying tax rate was due to non-allowable
costs relating to the loss on the disposal of Morse France, impairment of goodwill on the Morse German
investment and intangible asset amortisation. There is a prior year tax credit of £2.9 million in relation to
the German and French businesses which is no longer likely to crystallise. We believe the underiying tax
rate for the Group going forward will be 30%.

Earnings per share
Adjusted earnings per share increased by 0.8p to 5.0p (2005: 4.2p). Details can be found in Note 4 of the
financial statements.

Dividend

A final dividend of 2.7p per share (2005: 2.6p), will, subject to approval at the Annual General Meeting,
be paid on 15 November 2006 to shareholders on the register as at the close of business on 6 October
2006. This gives a total dividend for the year of 3.9p, an increase of 4% on last year.

Cashflow
Net funds at the year-end amounted to £25.7 million (2005: £36.3 million)'. Principal outflows during the
year were dividend payments of £5.8 million and tax payments of £3.5 million.

Eric Dodd
Acting Group Finance Director
30 August 2006

Note 1 Please refer to Note 33 on page 83
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Profiles: the Board

RICHARD LAPTHORNE

NON-EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN

Age 63. Richard joined Morse in 1998 and was Vice Chairman of BAE until 1999. He is Chairman of
Cable & Wireless and New Look.

DUNCAN MCINTYRE

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Age 47. Duncan joined Morse as Finance Director in 1994, was then appointed Commercial Director and
became the Group's Chief Executive Officer in 1997. He is a qualified accountant and worked at Price
Waterhouse for ten years before joining Morse. He is also a Non-Executive Director of Profero Limited.

PHIL COLL

EUROPEAN DIRECTOR

Age 47. Phil joined Morse in December 1995 following a 13-year career in the IT industry with CERN,
IBM and Sequent. He has held several senior management positions in the Group, and was appointed to
the Board in January 2002.

DAVID BERESFORD

MD BUSINESS CONSULTING

Age 39. David joined Morse in December 2002. Prior to joining Morse, David held senior management
positions at Andersen Consulting, Diagonal Plc and Sportbusiness Group. He was appainted to the
Board in August 2003.

BILL PASSMORE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Age 65. Bill joined Morse in 1995. He is Non-Executive Chairman of Artisan Software Tools Lid, Quester
VCTS ple, Respond Group ple and Sift Group Limited. He previously worked for DEC and Sun
Microsystems where he was Vice President, Northern Europe.

COLIN TUCKER

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Age 61. Colin joined Morse in 2000. He is Deputy Chairman of Hutchison 3G and was Technical Director
of Orange plc for ten years. Colin has 30 years’ experience in the telecommunications and electronics
industries.

DERRICK NICHOLSON

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Age 56. Derrick joined Morse in 2005. Before his appointment o the Board in December 2005, Derrick
was an Executive Director and CFO of the Avecia Group. He previously worked for Astra Zeneca and ICl
and held a number of senior financial positions.

NIGEL WHITEHEAD

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Age 43. Nige! Whitehead joined Morse in 2004. He is Group Managing Director of Air Systems, a division
within BAE Systems, and brings with him over 20 years’ management experience from varying roles
within the aerospace and defence industry.
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LLEE CAMERON

COMPANY SECRETARY AND GENERAL COUNSEL

Age 35. Lee joined Morse in 1998. He is responsible for legal and compliance matters across the Group
and also holds the position of Legal & Commercial Director for Monitise, Morse's innovative software
subsidiary specialising in the development of secure Java applications and mobile banking and payment

ecosystems.
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Financial advisers and stockbrokers

investec Investment Banking
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Morse plc
Directors’ report
for the year ended 30 June 2006

The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements of Morse plc and its
subsidiary companies ("the Group") for the year ended 30 June 2006.

Principal activity

The Group’s principal activity during the year continued to evolve from the selling and implementing of T
solutions to that of an advisory & execution professional services company.

Review of the business and likely future developments

A review of the business and likely future developments can be found in the Chairman’s statement on
pages 5 to 6, Operating review on pages 7 to 11 and Financial review on pages 12 to 13.

Results
The results of the Group are set out on page 40.

Dividends

The Directors propose the payment of a final dividend of 2.70p per Ordinary share (2005: 2.60p), which
in addition to the interim dividend of 1.20p per Ordinary share {2005: 1.15p), amounts to a total dividend
for the full year of 3.90p per Ordinary share (2005: 3.75p).

Research and development

During the year the Group spent £1,332,000 (2005: £284,000) on research and development which was
primarily attributed to its mobileATM® and Wisdom™ applications. The costs in 2005 related to
Wisdom™.

Directors and their interests
The Directors who held office during the year and to the date of this report were as follows:

E Barton {Senior Non-Executive Director - retired 1 March 2006)

D Beresford (Executive Director)

P Caoll (Executive Director)

S Cruickshank (Group Finance Director — appointed 12 July 2005 & resigned 14 June 2006) "

G James (Group Finance Director - resigned 24 August 2005)

R Lapthorne {Non-Executive Chairman)

D Mcintyre (Chief Executive Officer)

D Nicholson (Independent Non-Executive Director - appointed 12 December 2005)

W Passmare (Independent Non-Executive Director — wiil be retiring at the Annual General
Meeting)

C Tucker (Independent Nan-Executive Director)

N Whitehead (Independent Non-Executive Director)

Note 1 The Board position of Group Finance Director is currently not filled following the resignation of Stuart Cruickshank on 14 June 2006,
though the Company is in the process of seeking a repiacement. An announcement will be made in due course. Eric Dodd is Acting
Group Finance Director in the interim.

Directors’ beneficial interests in the share capital (including share options) of the Company are given in
the Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 34. There has been no change in the Directors’ interests in
shares of the Company and its subsidiaries between the end of the financial year and 30 August 2006.
The Register of Directors’ Interests, which is open to shareholders’ inspection, contains full details of
Directors’ shareholdings.

One third {(or the nearest whole number to one third) of the Directors in office at the date of the Annual
General Meeting are required to retire by rotation. Richard Lapthorne, Colin Tucker and Duncan
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Mclintyre, whose profiles are given on pages 14 to 15, will retire and offer themselves for re-election.
Derrick Nicholson was appointed to the Board on 12 December 2005 and will retire and offer himself for
election at the Annuai General Meeting. Bill Passmore has announced his intention to retire at the
Annual General Meeting.

Political and charitable contributions

During the year the Group made various charitable contributions totalling £14,588 (2005: £12,950). The
Group made no political donations (2005: £nil).

Post balance sheet event

On 21 July 2006, Morse pic completed the disposal of its business in Germany (Morse GmbH) and
Austria (Morse IT Solutions Austria GmbH) (*"Morse Germany”) for a maximum consideration of €9.5
million {£6.5 million), comprising an initial consideration of €7.1 million (£4.2 million) in cash and a further
€2.4 million (£1.6 million} of expected deferred consideration payable in cash within 90 days of
completion subject to the collection of Morse Germany’s receivables, and if the business achieves certain
financial targets. The sale of the business was seen as an opportunity for the Company to focus on its
core business in line with its strategy.

The sale of the business resulted in a non-cash exceptional charge of £2.3 million in the period to 30
June 2006 on the impairment of the goodwill balance.

Disabled employees

The Group recognises the importance of non-discriminatory empioyment practice and has an equal
opportunities policy that includes the employment of people with disabilities. The Group gives full
consideration to applications for employment from disabled persons where the requirements of the job
can be fulffilled.

Where existing employees become disabled, it is the Group’s policy, wherever practicable, to provide
continuing empioyment under normal terms and conditicns and to provide training, career deveiopment
and promotion wherever appropriate.

Employee involvement

During the year, the policy of providing employees with information about the Group has been continued
through its internai newsletter. Regular meetings are held between management and employees to allow
a free flow of information and ideas. Employees are encouraged to participate directly in the success of
the business through the Group’s share option schemes and have been encouraged to reinvest in the
Group through participation in a Save As You Eamn Scheme.

Environment

Due to the nature of the Company’s business, the Directors believe it has a relatively minor impact on the
environment. Nevertheless, the Company endeavours through its Environmenta!l Policy to reduce this
impact as far as possible. The Environmental Policy is regularly reviewed and, where necessary, revised
to keep it in line with the Company’s business requirements. The Company meets FTSE’s corporate
responsibility criteria and is a constituent company on the FTSE4Good Index Series.

Following an independent external audit (not undertaken by the Group’s auditors), the Company has
chosen not to set environmental Key Performance Indicators (*KPIs”) due to its relative size and the
limited impact which it has on the environment. The Company believes that its current Environmental
Policy ensures that it is responsible and pro-active in limiting its environmenta! impact.

The Company ensures that all of its internal infrastructure is purchased in compliance with the RoHS

Directive (the restriction of the use of certain hazardous substances in electrical and electronic
equipment).
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Risk

Senior management are aware of their responsibility for managing risk within their Strategic Business
Units (“SBU"). Each SBU head reports to the Board on the status of these risks through management
reports.

Group risk is regularly reviewed at Board level to ensure that risk management is being implemented and
monitored effectively.

The Board’s policy is to ensure the SBUs are empowered to run their businesses effectively and
appropriately, bearing in mind the requirements for timely decision making and commercial reality.

The Company regularly reviews its commercial insurance programme and maintains an appropriate and
adequate portfolio of insurance policies in line with the nature, size and complexity of the business.

Operationally, an approvals matrix has been established to ensure that risk is approved at the relevant
managerial level. Standard form contracts are provided for commercial use and to assist the commercial
function to negotiate within an appropriate and approved safety zone.

Through management reports, risks are highlighted and monitored to identify potential business risk
areas and, wherever possible, to quantify and address the risk with a contingency/mitigation plan.

Business review

The Directors have provided the following business review in accordance with the Companies Act.
Accordingly, the Company is disclosing the main trends and factors likely to affect the future
development, performance and position of the Company’s business.

KPls, whilst set at Group level, have been devised to allow the Board and shareholders to monitor the
Group as a whole, as well as operating businesses within the Group.

The Company has financial KPls which it monitors on a regular basis at Board level and, where relevant,
at SBU operational executive management meetings as follows:

30 June 2006 30 June 2005
1. Continuing Group revenue'" £297.0 million £309.2 million
2. Operating profit® from continuing operations ~ £7.4 million £5.5 million
3. Profit before tax for continuing operations ©»  £8.0 miffion £6.8 million
4. Net funds balance " £25.7 million £36.3 million

Note 1 - for the discussion of these financial KPls please refer to the Chairman’s statement at pages 5 to 8, the Operating review at pages 7 to
11 and the Financial review at pages 12 to 13
Note 2 — £7.4 million continuing profit excludes all exceptional items and includes the loss of the joint ventures of £0.4 million (2005: £0.5 million)
- please refer to page 40
Note 3 — excludes all exceptional items and includes total net financing income of £0.6 million for 2006 (2005: £1.3 million) — please refer to
page 40

The Company has provided in the Chairman’s statement and Operating review details of various risks it
faces, which include:

¢ the maintenance of a heaithy net funds balance (see page 5 — Chairman’s statement) for the
Group to be able to invest for its future development;

s non-profitable and low margin business entities especially in the reselling base, where the
transition to an advisory & execution business has not been sufficiently quick, detracting from
corporate objectives and effort (see page 5 — Chairman’s statement);

» seasonal fluctuations in demand, especially in our consultancy-based businesses, coupled with a
maturing market which can result in non-recoverable consultancy costs (see page 8 — Operating
reviewy,
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» phasing issues with major new clients in the confirmation of contracts prior to work commencing
resulting in under utilised resources (see page 8 — Operating review);

« not rationalising cost bases effectively to eradicate duplication of effort (see page 8 — Operating
review); and

« the need to continually rejuvenate our presence with key third party suppliers to ensure that we
are not potentially losing existing and potential revenue streams (see page 8 — Operating review).

The Company has announced that it will be transforming the core Morse business to a ‘one company'
organisation and therefore monitors its KPls at a Group level. The ‘one company’ framework will
highlight common themes throughout the Company promoting one brand and one cuiture.

The Company perceives and closely monitors the following major trends, opportunities and risks for the
year ending 30 June 2007 and beyond:

* ensuring that the Group’s objectives of growing revenue and profit in line with market expectations
are met, given the strategy of transforming the business into two distinct areas - core Morse and
Monitise - and ensuring that this transformation is effectively and successfully implemented;

« ensuring the transformation of the Company strategy from a reseller to a single advisory &
execution professional services business;

e focusing client attention on the strong Morse brand;
improving margins so that they are consistent with other advisory & execution firms;

« ensuring that we represent and maintain a global image to our clients in an ever competitive
market;

* revenue maintenance is a risk to the business. However, ensuring that this is bolstered by
increased revenue quality and margin growth is seen as key to ensure that the more important
KPI1 of profit underpins the top-line numbers;

* in our consultancy-based businesses, seasonal fluctuations especially in the summer months
presents a risk. However, ensuring that the pipeline of work is effectively managed and
maintained and grown in key accounts has and will continue to ensure that the businesses
maintain healthy cash flow;

» fee rates continue to face downwards pressure. However the focus from the Group on a ‘one
company’ approach and leveraging off other business units should help to provide a more tailored
niche offering to avoid further detericration; and

* with the Monitise business, building upon the successes achieved in creating a stand-alone
business entity, and maintaining, growing upon and capitalising on the impressive intellectual
property porifolio already built around the brand, ensuring that the challenges of high capital
cutlay are balanced with the need to carefully match future expenditure and revenue.

Corporate and social responsibility policy

The Company embraces corporate social responsibility and encourages all of its subsidiaries to become
involved in local projects and initiatives on an ad-hoc level dependent on employee interest and
participation.

Supplier payment policy and practice

The Group supports the Better Payment Practice Code (previously the CBI's Prompt Payers Code), to
which it subscribes, when dealing with all of its suppliers. A copy of the code can be obtained from the
Department of Trade and Industry, DTl Publications, Orderline, Admail 528, London SW1W 8YT.

It is the Group’s policy that payments to suppliers are made in accordance with agreed terms and
conditions on an individual basis provided all trading terms and conditions have been complied with.

The average number of creditor days for the Group for the year was 44 (2005: 33) - the Company does
not have any frade creditors.
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Substantial shareholdings
The Company has been notified pursuant to Sections 198-208 of the Companies Act 1985 that the
following shareholders held 3% or more of the Company’s Ordinary shares as at 30 August 2006:

Shareholder Number of shares % of the issued share

held capital
3i Group Asset Management 24,767,399 16.15
Harris Assaociates 21,704,900 14.15
UBS Global Asset Management {(UK) 18,286,286 11.92
Liontrust Asset Management 9,342,520 6.09
GAM 6,965,000 4.54
Capital International 5,939,900 3.87
Morley Fund Management 5,349,655 349
Legal & General Investment Management 5,269,622 344

See Directors’ Remuneration Report for the table of Directors’ Shareholdings on page 34.

Interests in own shares
The Company did not make any acquisitions of its own shares during the year. The Company held a
balance of 1,132,345 shares in respect of shares held in its EBTs (2005: 1,242,730 shares)

Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on 9 November 2006.

Going concern _

The Directors are satisfied that the Company and the Group have adequate rescurces to continue to
operate for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue to adopt the ‘going concern’ basis for
preparing the accounts.

Auditors
A resolution to re-appoint KPMG Audit Plc wili be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

Disclosure of information to auditors

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors’ report confirm that, so far as they
are each aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Group’s auditors are unaware. Each
Director has taken all steps that he ought to have taken as a Director to make himself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Group’s auditors are aware of that information.

Company Secretary
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Statement of Directors’ responsihilities in respect of the Directors’ report and the
financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ report and the Group and parent company
financial statements, in accordance with applicable law and regutations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Group and parent company financial statements for each
financial year. Under that law the Directors have elected to prepare the Group financial statements in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and have elected to prepare the parent company financial
statements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards.

The Group financial statements are required by law and IFRSs as adopted by the EU to present fairly the
financial position and the performance of the Group; the Companies Act 1985 provides in relation to such
financial statements that references in the relevant part of that Act to financial statements giving a true
and fair view are references to their achieving a fair presentation.

The parent company financial statements are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the parent company.

In preparing each of the Group and parent company financial statements, the Directors are required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

¢ make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

o for the Group financial statements, state whether they have been prepared in accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the EU;

+ for the parent company financial statements, state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards
have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the parent
company financial statements; and

+ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the Group and the parent company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the parent company and enable them to ensure that its
financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985. They have general responsibility for taking
such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information

included in the company’s website. Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from the legislation in other jurisdictions.
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Corporate Governance Statement

Combined Code on Corporate Governance Compiiance Statement

The Board is committed to the main provisions of the July 2003 Combined Code on Corporate
Governance (the “Code”) and endeavours to comply with the Code in all respects. This report highlights
the way in which the Board believes it has been compliant with the provisions of the Code during the
year.

The Company was compliant with the Code as set out below other than where illustrated within this
report,

The Board of Directors

The Board collectively embraces its responsibilities and accountability in reserving certain matters for its
review and approval, including an effective overali strategy, prudent financial strategy and planning,
strategic aims, human resources to ensure the Company can meet its objectives, material acquisitions
and disposals, investments and capital projects.

The Board believes it makes its decisions in the best interests of the Company ensuring that its
obligations to shareholders and others are effectively met.

The Board currently consists of three Executive Directors and four Non-Executive Directors (excluding
the Chairman). For the period between Stuart Cruickshank joining the Board on 12 July 2005 and Gavin
James resigning from the Board on 24 August 2005, the Company was not compliant with Code
Provision A.3.2 {which requires at least half the Board, with the exclusion of the Chairman, to be
Independent Non-Executive Directors). As reported in the Report and Accounts 2005, the Board views
this non-compliance as a timing issue. It is the Company’s policy to always have at least half the Board
comprised of Independent Non-Executive Directors.

The Board ensures that there is an Independent Director appointed as the Senior Non-Executive
Director. This position was held by Eric Barton and, following his retirement from the Board on 1 March
2006, this position has been assumed by Derrick Nicholson who joined the Board on 12 December 2005.

All Non-Executive Directors excluding the Chairman are considered by the Board to be independent for
the purposes of the Code even though they are permitted to hold other directorships with other
companies. The Chairman is also considered by the Board to be independent. Bill Passmore was
appointed as a Non-Executive Director of the Company on 29 September 1995. Whilst he has been a
Non-Executive Director of the Company for more than nine years, he is still considered by the Board to
be independent for the purposes of the Code and his range of other current directorships and wide
previous experience has allowed him to bring distinct and challenging views to Board discussions.
Following the retirement of Eric Barton on 1 March 2006, which had been anticipated, the Board felt that
it was important to continue to retain Bill Passmore’s on-going commitment during the continuing
transition period of the Company, though he has announced that he will be retiring from the Board at the
Annual General Meeting.

The balance between Executive and Non-Executive Directors has been reviewed by the Nominations
Committee and the Board, and there is a formal process for the appointment of new Directors to ensure
that suitable candidates are identified.

The posts of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by different Directors and their differing
responsibilities defined. The Chairman leads the Board in determining strategy, achievement of
objectives and organising the business of the Board, but has no involvement in the day-to-day business
of the Group. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for formulating the Group's strategy and for the
Group's day-fo-day business and is accountable to the Board for the financial and operational
performance of the Group.
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The Board believes its style of involvement with the senior executives through the Chief Executive Officer
and the Executive Directors is the most effective way to provide confidence in the control environment of
the Company. Through openness and discussion, the Board endeavours to understand and provide
leadership as to the willingness of the Company to take appropriate risks in the interests of the
shareholders. The Board focuses almost exclusively on operational and strategic matters and thereby
lays the foundation for an understanding of the business which facilitates effective governance.

The Board meets at least six times during the year and holds other meetings as necessary. All Directors
have access to the Company Secretary, who, under the direction of the Chairman, is responsible for
ensuring Board procedures are followed. The Chairman is responsible for ensuring all Directors receive
accurate and appropriate information in a timely manner in advance of Board meetings. The Board is
provided with comprehensive information to enable it to discharge its duties.

The Company Secretary, under the direction of the Chairman, is also responsible for ensuring that there
is good information flow to and within the Board and its Committees. The role also invoives ensuring that
the flow of information between the Board and the senior executives within the business is maintained
and that the Board is duly updated and made aware of any governance matters. The Company Secretary
is responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are followed and complied with. The appointment and
removal of the Company Secretary is the responsibility of the entire Board.

The Chairman ensures the effective contribution of the Non-Executive Directors and ensures the
maintenance of good and constructive relations by them with the Executive Directors.

The Company has Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance cover in place covering all directors and
officers.

A procedure exists for all Directots to be entitled to take independent professional advice, if necessary, at
the Company’s expense where they need to ensure they are discharging their responsibilities as
Directors.

One third of Directors in office at the date of the Annual General Meeting are required to retire by
rotation. Directors are required to retire at least every three years. Directors appointed to the Board
during and after the period are required to seek election at the first Annual General Meeting following
their appointment. Any re-election of a Non-Executive Director, which wouid take them over a six-year
appointment, is subject o rigorous review taking into account the need for progression of the Board.

The performance of the Executive Directors (excluding the Chief Executive Officer) is evaluated by the
Chairman in consultation with the other Non-Executive Directors and the Chief Executive Officer. The
Non-Executive Directors, led by the Senior Independent Director, are responsible for the performance
evaluation of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer, after having sought the input of all other
Directors. The results of these evaluations are used when considering the re-election of Board members.
The results will also be used by the Chairman and Senior Independent Director to ensure the strengths
and weaknesses of the Board are recognised and that there is planned and progressive refreshing of the
Board.

Going forward and in compliance with Code provision A.6, the Company will continue to review and
consider whether appropriate methods and processes for establishing a more formal annual evaluation of
all Directors is required. The Company is therefore not currently compliant with Code provision A.6.1 in
that the performance evaluation methods are not formalised. The current informal evaluation covers
individual contribution and commitment.

The Chairman and the Board believe that the Board and each Committee of the Board are operating

appropriately and effectively. They focus on operational issues and are carried out in an atmosphere of
openness. Papers are usually produced in advance to support agenda items. The Executive Directors,
as managers, always seek to provide appropriate answers to all questions asked by the Non-Executive

Directors.
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The Directors’ details, along with their membership of each Board Commiittee and attendance record, is
set out in the table below {other members may attend at the invitation of the Committee):

Board Structure and Attendance between 1 July 2005 and 30 June 2006

Status Audit Nominations Remuneration Board Audit Nominations Remuneration
Committee Committee Committee Meetings Committee Committee Committee
Member Member Member Attended Attended Attended Attended
No. of
Meetings
held 10 2 2 6
Richard Non-
Lapthorne Executive No Yes® No 10 - 2 -
Duncan
Mclintyre Executive No No No 10 - - -
Gavin
James' Executive No No No 1 - - -
Stuart
Cruickshank®  Executive No No No 8 - - -
Phil
Coll Executive No No No 9 - - -
David
Beresford Executive No No No 9 - - -
Colin Non-
Tucker Executive Yes Yes Yes 7 1 1 4
Bill Non-
Passmore Executive Yes Yes Yes 10 2 1 5
Eric Neon-
Barton® Executive Yes Yes Yes 7 2 1 4
Nigel Non-
Whitehead Executive Yes Yes Yes’ 9 2 2 4
Derrick Non-
Nicholson®® Executive Yes® Yes Yes [ 1 2 4
Lee Company
Cameron Secretary No No No 10 - - -
Note 1 Gavin James served on the Board until 24 Avgust 2005
Note 2 Stuart Cruickshank was appointed to the Board on 12 July 2005 and resigned on 14 June 2006
Note 3 Eric Barton was the Senior Independent Director until he retired from the Board on 1 March 2006
Note 4 Derrick Nicholson was appointed to the Board on 12 December 2005
Note 5 Derrick Nicholson became Chairman of the Audit Committee from 1 March 2006
Note 6 Richard Lapthorne is Chairman of the Nominations Committee
Note 7 Nigel Whitehead is Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
Note 8 Detrrick Nicholson has assumed the role of Senior Independent Director following Eric Barton’s retirement from the Board on
1 March 2006
Note 9 Bill Passmore anncunced his resignation from the Remuneration Committee during the fifth meeting

During the year, there are occasions when Directors are unable to attend Board and Committee
meetings. In those circumstances, the absent Director is provided with a copy of the Board papers and
the resultant minutes and has the opportunity to raise questions at a subsequent meeting.

All new Non-Executive Directors are to be appointed for specified terms.
Notice periods for all Directors are set at one year or less.

The Committees of the Board
The following Committees have been established to assist the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities.

Audit Committee

During the year the Committee meets at least twice and on other occasions as and when necessary to
fulfil its duties. A record of individual attendance is listed in the table above. The Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer, Group Finance Director and external auditors are invited to attend aill meetings.

This Committee is responsible for overseeing the involvement of the Group’s auditors in the planning and
review of the Group's financial statements and any other formal announcements relating to the Group’s
financial performance, for recommending the appointment and fees of its auditors, and for discussing with
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the auditors the findings of the audit and issues arising from the audit. The Committee considers the
independence and objectivity of the auditors with regard to the way in which it conducts its audit duties. It
reviews the Group’s compliance with accounting, legal and listing requirements. 1t is also responsible,
along with the Board, for reviewing the effectiveness of the systems of internal control.

The Commiittee’s terms of reference are available for public inspection at the Company’s registered
office.

In the normal course, the Company will expect its auditors to provide audit and tax services, subject to
auditor objectivity, independence regarding audit duties, review and re-tendering every four years. The
Audit Committee has discretion to vary this review period depending on satisfaction with the audit
process. A review was conducted this year and the Audit Committee’s recommendation is that KPMG
Audit Plc be re-appointed as the Company’s auditors. An appropriate resolution will be put before the
shareholders at this year's Annual General Meeting.

All other non-audittax advisory (e.g. due diligence) services will aiways be benchmarked by management
to ensure value for money, auditor objectivity and independence of advice. Management may exercise its
discretion to retain the auditors for such services subject to a de minimis of £50,000 per individual
transaction or, for a series of smaller transactions, fees aggregating 50% of the annual combined audit
and tax fee as projected in each year's initial auditors’ review. Transactions involving higher fees, or
where the independence of the auditors may be calied into question, may be agreed by the Audit
Committee Chairman who will, at his discretion, refer the matter for approval by the full Audit Committee
in material cases. The auditors will not receive management consultancy work.

The members of the Audit Committee are the four Non-Executive Directors: Nigel Whitehead, Bill
Passmore, Colin Tucker and Derrick Nicholson, who chairs the Committee. Eric Barton chaired the Audit
Committee until his retirement from the Board on 1 March 20086.

The Board is satisfied that at least one member of the Audit Committee has recent and relevant financial
experience.

The role of the Audit Committee is to monitor all financial statements of the Company, review internal
financial controls, consider the need for an internal audit function and report to the Board on its findings if
it considers action or improvement is required.

The Board reviews the Company's requirement for an internal audit function on an annual basis. It has
determined that the Group is not sufficiently complex in overall size or structure to warrant a dedicated
internal audit function. The Audit Committee considers they have adequate structures in place to monitor
financial statements and review financial controls without the requirement for a permanent intemal audit
function. This position will be kept under annual review and, should an internal audit function become
necessary or desirable in the future, measures will be taken to ensure the Company establishes an
internal audit function without deiay.

The Company has a formal ‘whistle-blowing’ policy made available to all employees of the Company and
all subsidiary companies in compliance with Code Provision C.3.4.

Remuneration Committee

The Committee considers and approves specific remuneration packages for each Executive Director
following consultation with the Chairman. In accordance with guidelines set by the Board, it determines
the Group’s policy on remuneration of senior executives and controls the operation of share option
schemes and the grant of options.

Remuneration of Non-Executive Diractors is set by a Committee of the Board consisting of at least two
Executive Directors.
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The Committee’s terms of reference are available for public inspection at the Company’s registered
office.

The members of the Remuneration Committee are Derrick Nicholson, Colin Tucker and Nigel Whitehead,
who chairs the Commitiee., Bili Passmore was a member and Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
until his resignation from the Committee on 28 April 2006. The Remuneration report appears on pages
30 to 37.

Nominations Committee

The Committee meets as required to initiate the selection process of, and make recommendations to, the
Board with regard to the appointment of new Directors.

The Board has established a procedure of formal appointment of new Board Directors based upon merit
and objective criteria, ensuring the appointee has sufficient time to devote to the role. The Board is
satisfied with the plans for assessment of Directors, updating of skills and knowledge regarding the
Company to fulfil their functions, and orderly succession, ensuring that an appropriate core level of skill
and experience is maintained within the Company and on the Board. Any significant commitments which
might conflict with the effectiveness of new appointees is disclosed to the Board before appointment.
Major shareholders are given the opportunity to meet new Non-Executive Directors at the Annual General
Meeting.

The Board requires its members to make it aware of any changes in commitments which might give
concern regarding the effectiveness of that member.

The Board does not allow any Executive Directors to take on more than one Non- Executlve Directorship
in a FTSE 100 company or the Chairmanship of such company.

The members of the Nominations Committee are the Chairman and the four Non-Executive Directors.
The Committee is chaired by Richard Lapthorne.

The employment contracts for the Non-Executive Directors are made available for public inspection at the
Company's registered office.

The Committee’s terms of reference are also available for public inspection at the Company’s registered
office.

Stuart Cruickshank and Derrick Nichoison were appointed to the Board on 12 July 2005 and 12
December 2005 respectively. They were selected with the assistance of external search consultants. In
compliance with Code Provision A.5.1, they were given a full, formal and tailored induction on joining the
Board. Shareholders have the opportunity to meet with all the Directors at the Annual General Meeting.

Relations with shareholders

The Company and Board recognise the importance of developing and maintaining good relationships
with its shareholders. There are regular dialogues with shareholders to ensure that issues and concerns
are raised, including presentations following the Company’s interim and preliminary announcements. The
Company also uses the Annual General Meeting as an opportunity to communicate with its shareholders.
Ali Directors are required to attend the Annual General Meeting and the Chairmen of the Audit,
Remuneration and Nominations Committees are also available to answer shareholders' questions.

Notice of the 2006 Annual General Meeting will be despatched to shareholders not less than 20 business
days before the meeting. At the Annual General Meeting, details of all proxy votes will be made available
in accordance with the provisions of the Code. Separate resclutions on each substantially separate issue,
in particular any proposal relating to the Annual Report and Accounts, will be made at the Annual
General Meeting.
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Eric Barton was Senior Independent Non-Executive Director until his retirement from the Board on 1
March 2006, and Derrick Nichoison has assumed responsibility for this role. The role includes being
available to shareholders if they have concerns which have not been resolved following contact through
normal channels — being the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer or Group Finance Director. The
Company is in the process of appointing a new Group Finance Director following the resignation of Stuart
Cruickshank on 14 June 2006 and, in the interim, this position is held by Eric Dodd in an acting capacity.

Information is made available to shareholders on the Group’s website, which can be found at morse.com.

Management structure

The Executive Directors meet regularly as part of the Executive Committee, which comprises both the
Executive Directors and Strategic Business Unit Heads, to discuss strategic and operational matters.
Executive Directors also attend Subsidiary Board meetings where necessary and appropriate.

Health and safety

The Company recognises the importance of this and understands the high standards required to ensure
the health, safety and welfare of its employees at work, its customers and the general public. The
Company has an exemplary health and safety record.

Internal control systems

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's system of internal control and for reviewing its
effectiveness on an annual basis. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Elements of the system of material controls (which includes financial, operational and compliance
controls) are:

* an annual budget is prepared to facilitate the monitoring of the Group's business and financial
activities and is formally adopted by the Board;

« Board meetings are held on a regular basis to consider performance against budget, the
management accounts and the forecast for the coming months;

¢ within each Strategic Business Unit, the relevant Strategic Business Unit Head meets with senior
managers of companies within that Strategic Business Unit to discuss issues particular to that
company,

« the Audit Committee meets at least twice a year to consider the plans and the results of the audit
performed by the external auditors. The external auditors have direct access to the Audit
Committee and vice versa; and

¢ business processes and internal control procedures areé maintained through the BSI Certified BS
EN 1SO 9001: 2000 Business Process documentation.

Risk management

During the year there were processes to ensure that business rigk is considered, assessed and
monitored as an integral part of the business. The Directors are of the view that from 1 July 2005 and up
io the date of approval of the Annual Report and Accounts, there is an ongoing process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the Group’s significant risks that is reqularly reviewed by the Board.

Statement from Independent Directors

The Non-Executive Directors have been asked to provide their views on the effectiveness of the
corporate governance processes within Morse to ensure compliance with the Code. These views have
been determined by the Non-Executive Directors and shared with the full Board in open session.

“We have addressed the quality of the relationship between the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer,
the openness of the Chief Executive Officer with the Board, the visibility of checks and balances between
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the Executive Directors and whether all questions asked by the Non-Executive Directors in Board and
Committee meetings have been appropriately addressed. The Non-Executive Directors have concluded
that issues are fully debated at Board and Committee meetings and subjected to rigorous scrutiny without
detracting from any openness in Board relationships at all levels - particularly as between the Chief
Executive Officer and the Chairman and between the Executive and Non-Executive Directors.”
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Introduction

The Board presents its report on remuneration, which sets out the policy and disclosures in relation to
Directors’ remuneration. This report will be submitted to shareholders for their approval at the Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be heid on § November 2006 and has been produced in accordance
with the Directors’ Remuneration Report Regulations 2002,

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee reviews and determines on behalf of the Board the overall remuneration
package of the Executive Directors. The Chief Executive Officer recommends and monitors the
remuneration of all senior executives. Its terms of reference are available for public inspection.

Its members, alt Independent Non-Executive Directors, are Nigel Whitehead (Chairmany), Derrick
Nicholson and Colin Tucker., Bill Passmore was a member and Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee until his resignation on 28 April 2006. The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer may, upon
the Committee’s invitation, also attend the meetings of the Committee. The Chief Executive Officer does
not attend where his own remuneration is being considered.

During the year, advice has been sought from New Bridge Street Consuitants LLP in relation to current
market trends and best practice with regard to Directors’ remuneration. The Committee has also used
New Bridge Street Consuitants LLP to act as independent consultants during the year ended 30 June
2006 and plans to continue to use them to act as independent consultants in the year ending 30 June
2007. No other services are offered by New Bridge Street Consultants LLP to the Company save for
technical advice relating to the operation of the Company’s share incentive arrangements.

Remuneration Policy for Executive Directors

The Company’s remuneration policy is designed to ensure that Executive Directors’ rewards are
competitive when compared to similar companies, to recognise the plans for the Group and align the
interests of Directors and shareholders. The remuneration packages comprise base salary, benefits,
performance-related bonuses, defined contribution pensions and long-term incentive rewards. Base
salaries are set to ensure the Company can recruit and retain the most capable talent, which we believe
is vital for driving shareholder value. Strong emphasis is then placed on the variable performance-related
aspects of the overall package to ensure performance during a fiscal year can be correctly rewarded.
Base salaries are normally set at median market level with variable incentives (bonus and share option
arrangements) offering upper quartile earnings for upper quartile performance in a normal market
environment.

There were no contracts of significance subsisting during or at the end of the year in which a Director of
the Company is or was materially interested.

The current elements of the remuneration packages can be summarised as follows:

Base Salary

Salaries are normally reviewed annually in December by the Remuneration Committee in accordance
with the terms above. The Group results for the previous trading year, individual performance and market
rates are considered. The Executive Directors’ salaries were increased by an average of 4.29% in
January 2006 (March 2005; 3.50%).

The Executive Directors’ base salaries as at 30 June 2006 were:

Duncan Mclintyre £320,000
Philip Coll £185,000
David Beresford £185,000
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Benefits
Benefits include the provision of a company car or allowance, private medical insurance, life insurance
and permanent health insurance.

Annual Performance-Related Bonus

The annual bonus plan has a maximum threshold of 100% of base salary. In 20086, target bonuses for
individual Directors were set in a range of 35% to 55% of base salaries. These bonuses are triggered by
achieving the agreed performance objectives of the Group. Bonus payments are non-pensionable and
are payable after the Group's statutory accounts have been audited. In respect of the year ended 30
June 2006, £148,334 of bonuses were awarded to the Executive Directors of the Company (2005:
£280,000). This represents 16.67% of the possible maximum bonuses available to Executive Directors.
For the year ending 30 June 2007, any bonus payable will be based solely on achieving agreed financial
targets.

Pensions

The Company operates a defined coniribution scheme (money purchase) which is operated for Executive
Directors and employees. The Company contribution rate is set at a fixed amount for each of the
Executive Directors: Duncan Mclntyre’s rate is set at £35,000, and Messrs Coll's and Beresford's rates
are both set at £25,000, making an average contribution of 12.32%. This is below the recommendation
of 14% from the Remuneration Committee, which was made in July 2003 following a thorough review of
market practice.

Share Incentive Schemes

Executive share incentives are considered to be a key part of management retention and motivation. The
policy of the Company is to incentivise Directors and other executives to perform at high levels and to
align their interests with those of sharehoiders.

The Company operates an options-based long-term incentive policy. Under the Unapproved and
Approved versions of the Executive Share Option Schemes 2000, all option grants were subjectto a
performance condition that “there be an average annual increase in adjusted earnings per share of at
least 5% more than the average annual percentage increase in the Retail Price Index in the three-year
performance period.” Options granted under the Morse Unapproved Executive Share Option Scheme
preceding the 2000 Scheme contained the same 5% provision, but in addition allowed re-testing in a
fourth consecutive financial year.

The adjusted basic earnings per share (EPS) after goodwill amortisation and exceptional items was the
chosen performance measure as it was a commonly used measure of the Company’s financial
performance.

Further details of the Executive Share Option Schemes and the Directors’ interests are given below.

At the Company’s Annual General Meeting held on 1 November 2004, the Long-Term incentive Plan
("Plan”) was adopted. Save for exceptional circumstances, no individual may receive awards under the
Plan in any financial year over shares having a market value on grant in excess of 150% of his or her
annual rate of base salary. Prior to the Commitiee making an award under the Plan, it may require a
prospective participant to buy and retain Ordinary shares in the Company worth up to one-third of the
value of the shares over which the proposed award would be made.

Awards will normally vest following the third anniversary of grant once the Committee has determined the

extent to which the applicable performance conditions have been satisfied and provided the participant is
still employed in the Group.
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The performance condition attached to awards granted under the Plan relates to the Company’s relative
total shareholder return (“TSR") performance against the FTSE All-Share Software and Computer
Services Sector.

The percentage of Shares subject to an award that may vest is as follows:

Rank of the Company’s TSR against FTSE Percentage of award that vests
All-Share Software & Computer

Services Sector

Below median 0%
Median 25%
Upper quartile 100%
Between median and upper quartile 25% - 100% on a straight-line basis

The performance period will be a single three-year period, which will begin on the date on which an
award is granted and end three years later. There is no provision for re-testing. In addition, irrespective of
the Company’s TSR performance, no awards will vest unless the Commitiee is satisfied that the
Company’s earnings per share grows in real terms over the three-year performance period (unless the
Committee believes that it would be inappropriate to apply this underpin).

The Committee has chosen this performance condition as it believes it appropriate for executives to be
encouraged to generate returns to shareholders greater than the Company’s sector peers. The extent to
which the performance conditions are satisfied will be determined by the Committee.

The following graph shows the value of £100 invested in Morse plc on 30 June 2001 compared with the
value of £100 invested in the TechMark 100 Index. Morse has been a constituent of this Index for all of
this period and it is therefore deemed to be the most appropriate comparator.

Fotal shareholer return
Source: Thomson financial
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Employee Share Schemes

The Company operates a number of employee share schemes in which the Executive Directors are also
entitled to participate. Details of the awards, granted and outstanding, under each of the schemes are
given in Note 5 to the financial statements.

The Company announced on 30 August 2006 that the transition of the Group, from being a technology
reseller to an advisory & execution professional services company, was nearing completion and that as
part of this transition the Company would be structured around two separate and distinct businesses;
Morse and Monitise. Each of these businesses will operate with their own boards and management
structures. Appropriate incentives will be used to ensure that the executives and management within
these businesses perform at high levels and align their interests with those of the shareholders. The
incentive plans will utilise the Company's existing framework of option schemes and long-term incentives.

Morse Group Company Share Option Plan

A number of employees and senior managers were granted options in 1998 based on the terms of the
Morse Group Company Share Option Plan which was established by the Company on 3 December 1996.
All of these options have been exercised or are currently exercisable.

Employee Share Option Scheme

Shortly prior to listing, all employees of Morse (apart from Directors) who had commenced employment
with the Group prior to 17 February 1999 were granted options under this Scheme. The value of most of
the options granted was based on both basic salary and length of service. No further options have been
granted under this Scheme since listing.

Unapproved Executive Share Option Scheme

A number of Directors and members of senior management have been granted options under this
Scheme with the intention of motivating and retaining such key personnel. No options have been granted
under this Scheme since April 2000 and it has since been replaced by the Unapproved Executive Share
Option Scheme 2000.

Unapproved Executive Share Option Scheme 2000 and Approved Executive Share Option Scheme
2000

These Schemes were designed to provide the flexibility required in a competitive market, and were
adopted by the Company at the Annual General Meeting in November 2000. Details of the options
granted under these Schemes are given in Note 5 1o the financial statements.

Sharesave Share Option Schemes

The Company has established an Inland Revenue-approved Sharesave Scheme and an international
Save As You Earn Scheme. Sharesave options will be exercisable on completion of an associated
savings contract. The Sharesave options may be granted at a discount of up to 20% to the market price
of the Company’s shares on the day prior to the day of invitation, as permitted by the rules of the
Scheme.

Diagonal Option Schemes

At the time of the acquisition of Diagonal Plc, Diagonal employees who held options over Diagonal
shares under the Diagonal Plc Discretionary Award of Share QOptions Scheme, the Diagonal Plc Long-
Term Incentive Plan, the Diagonal Pic 1997 Savings-Related Share Option Scheme and the Claritas
Share Option Scheme exchanged their options for equivalent options over Morse shares. There are
options over Morse shares which remain outstanding under these schemes but no further options will be
granted under these schemes,
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Monitise Share Option Schemes

Ten per cent of Monitise Group Limited's authorised share capital has been allocated to be issued as
share options for management and staff. Share options have been, and will be, granted over shares in
Monitise Group Limited pursuant to the rules of the Monitise Group Limited Share Option Scheme.

Service Contracts

Executive Directors are employed on a rolling contract and have a 12-month notice period both to and
from the Company. They contain no provisions for termination payments other than those that may arise
under notice provisions, which the Company believes reflects market and best practice. Non-Executive
Director appointments contain a one-month notice provision and are for g 12-month duration. There are
no compensation provisions for early termination of Non-Executive Director appointments.

Directors as at 30 June 2006:

Director Employing Company Date of Contract
D Beresford Moarse plc Jul 2004

P Coll Morse plc Jul 2004

R Lapthorne Morse plc Jan 1999

D Mclintyre Morse plc Jui 2004

D Nicholson Morse pic Dec 2005

W Passmore Morse plc Feb 1999

C Tucker Morse plc Mar 2000

N Whitehead Morse plc Dec 2004

Directors’ Shareholdings

The Directors’ and their families’ beneficial interests in the share capital of the Company at
30 June 2006 are shown below:

30 June 2006 30 June 2005
Beneficial Share options Beneficial Share options
Ord shares of Ord shares of Ord shares of Ord shares of
10p 10p 10p 10p
R Lapthorne 300,000 - 300,000 -
D Mclntyre'? 6,060,087 805,252 5,929,587 638,500
W Passmore 45,000 - 45,000 -
C Tucker - - - -
P Coll 106,271 589,577 25,521 630,269
D Beresford® 43,181 270,000 15,831 393,000
D Nicholson 1,926 - 1,926 -
N Whitehead - - - -
Note 1 included in D Mcintyre’s beneficial shares are 704,468 (2005: 704,468) Ordinary shares held in trust for his minar children
Note 2 D Mcintyre's shareholding represents 3.85% {2005: 3.93%) of the total issued share capital as at 30 August 2006
Note 3 Included in D Beresford's beneficial shares are 27,350 Ordinary shares held in the name of Joanna Beresford

From 30 June 2006 to 30 August 2006 there have been no changes in the Directors’ interests.
Non-Executive Directors’ Fees

The Non-Executive Directors are not involved in decisions determining their own remuneration, with their
fees being set by the Executive Directors.
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The Company's policy on Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration is to ensure that Non-Executive Director
fees are competitive when compared to similar companies (as measured by the appropriate market
measures), are aligned with the interests of shareholders, and reflect the time, commitment and
responsibilities of the role. Fees for Non-Executive Directors will be reviewed against appropriate
comparator positions every year by a committee of at least two Executive Directors. Total fees paid will
reflect the position in the market for companies of similar market capitalisation in the 1T and IT services
field and reflect the total number of days’ service required.

There is no policy of paying Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration in shares, and share options will not
be granted to them. Non-Executive Directors do not receive any bonuses or pension contributions.

The following sections of the Directors’ Remuneration Report have been subject to audit.

Directors’ emoluments comprised:

2006 2005
Summary Base Annual Benefits  Total exc Pension Totalexc Pension
salary/ bonus and pensions cont pensions cont
fees allowances
£ £ £ £ £ £ £
R Lapthorne 100,000 - - 100,000 - 80,000 -
D Mcintyre 315,250 60,000 14,864 390,114 19,845 368,290 12,000
G James' 16,388 - 860 17,348 810 235,544 9,720
P Coll 183,062 30,000 10,664 223,727 12,799 240,765 7,500
D Beresford 177,500 30,000 9,114 216,614 13,062 227,790 7,000
S Cruickshank™® 419,327 28,334 10,536 458,197 7,150 - -
E Barton® 20,000 - - 20,000 - 27,000 -
W Passmore 30,000 - - 30,000 - 27,000 -
C Tucker 30,060 - - 30,006 - 27,000 -
N Whitehead 30,000 - - 30,000 - 14,625 -
D Nicholson* 16,731 - - 16,731 - - -
Total 1,338,259 148,334 46,138 1,532,731 53,666 1,258,014 36,220
Note 1 Gavin James resigned from the Board on 24 August 2005
Note 2 Stuart Cruickshank resigned from the Board on 14 June 2006
Note 3 Eric Barton retired from the Board on 1 March 20066
Note 4 Derrick Nicholson joined the Board on 12 December 2005. His fees are set at the same level as for other Non-Executive
Directors
Note & Stuart Cruickshank's base salary includes a payment in lieu of notice totalling £224,455 which was paid after the year-end
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Interest in Share Options

Name

Duncan
Mcintyre

Unapproved
Executive
Share
Opticn
Scheme

Approved &
Unapproved
Executive
Share
Option 20C0

Sharesave
Option
Scheme 4

Morse ple
Long Term
Incentive
Plan

Sharesave
Option
Scheme 7

Morse plc
Long Term
Incentive
Plan

Phil Coll

Unapproved
Executive
Share
Option
Scheme

Unapproved
Executive
Share
Option
Scheme

Sharesave
Option
Scheme 4

Approved &
Unapproved
Executive
Share
Option 2000

Approved &
Unapproved
Executive
Share
Opticn 2000

Marse plc
Long Term
Incentive
Plan

Morse ple
Long Term
Incentive
Plan

Options
Held At 1
July 2005

98,000

280,000°

10,500*

250,000°

56,000

30,769%

10,500*

163,000°

120,000°

250,000°

Options
Granted
During The
Year

12,8087

444 444°

120,000°

Options
Exercised
During The
Year

(10,500}

(10,500)

Options
Cancelled
During The
Year

(280,000)

{163,000}

Options
Held At 30
June 2006

98,000

250,000

12,808

444 444

56,000

30,769

120,000

250,000

120,000

Earliest
Date Of
Exercise

Mar 2005

Jul 2006

Nov 2005

Dec 2007

Feb 2009

Mar 2009

Mar 2002

Sep 2005

Nov 2005

Jul 2006

Jul 2007

Dec 2007

Sep 2008

Expiry Date

Mar 2009

Jul 2013

Apr 2008

Dec 2008

Aug 2009

Mar 2010

Mar 2009

Sep 2009

Apr 2006

Jur 2013

Apr 2014

Dec 2008

Sep 2009
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Phil Coll {continued)
Options Options Options
Options Granted Exercised  Cancelied Options Earijest
Held At 1 During The During The DuringThe  Held At 30 Date Of
Name July 2005 Year Year Year®  June 2006 Exercise  Expiry Date
Sharesave
Option
Scheme 7 - 12,8087 - - 12,808 Feb 2009 Aug 2009
David
Beresford
Approved &
Unapprove
d Executive
Share
Option
2000 243,000° - - {243,000) - Jul 2006 Jui 2013
Morse plc
Long Term
Incentive
Plan 150,000° - - - 150,000 Dec 2007 Dec 2008
Morse plc
Long Term
Incentive
Plan - 120,000° - - 120,000 Sep 2008 Sep 2009
Summary of Executive
Directors’ Options
Options Options Options
Options Granted Exercised Cancelled . Options
Held At1 During The During The During The Held At 30
July 2005 Year Year Year®  June 2006
Duncan Mcintyre 638,500 457,252 {10,500) (280,000 805,252
Phil Coll 630,269 132,808 {10,500) (163,000) 580,577
David Beresford 393,000 120,000 - (243,000) 270,000
Total 1,661,769 710,060 (21,000) {686,000) 1,664,829
Note 1 Exercise Price of £2500 Noteb Exercise Price of £1.375
Note 2 Exercise Price of £2.275 Noteé Exercise Price of £nil
Note 3 Exercise Price of £1.040 Note? Exercise Price of £0.730
Note 4 Exercise Price of £0.900 Note 8 Options cancelled in June 2006 for failure

to achieve performance conditions

The market price of the Company’s shares at the end of the year was £0.785 (2005: £0.70).

During the year the market price ranged between £0.665 and £1.277.

No other Directors have been granted share options in the shares of the Company or other Group

entities.

Signed on behalf of the Board

Nigel Whitehead
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

30 August 2006
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Report of the independent auditors to the members of Morse plc

We have audited the group and parent company financial statements (the “financial statements”) of
Morse plc for the year ended 30 June 2006 which comprise the group income statement, the group and
parent company batance sheets, the group cash flow statement, the group statement of recognised
income and expense and the related notes. These financial statements have been prepared under the
accounting policies set out therein.

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with section 235 of the
Companies Act 1985, Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Directors’ Report and the group financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the EU, and for preparing the parent company financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
UK Accounting Standards (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out in the Statement of
Directors’ Responsibilities on page 22.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant iegal and regulatory
requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and whether
the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and
whether, in addition, the group financial statements have been properiy prepared in accordance with
Article 4 of the IAS Regulation. We also report to you if, in our opinion, the Directors’ Report is not
consistent with the financial statements, if the company has not kept proper accounting records, if we
have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified
by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other transactions is not disclosed.

We read the Directors’ Report and consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any
apparent misstatements within it.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued
by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant
estimates and judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s and company’s circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we
considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that
the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other
irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of
information in the financial statements.
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Opinion
In our opinion:

¢ the group financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
EU, of the state of the group’s affairs as at 30 June 20086 and of its profit for the year then ended,

s the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act
1985 and Article 4 of the [AS Regulation;

» the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice, of the state of the parent company’s affairs as at 30 June 2006; and

« the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 1985.

_._.-—--:;7'
-

KPMG Audit Plc
Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditor

8 Salisbury Square
London
EC4Y 8BB

30 August 2006
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Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 30 June 2006

2006 *2005
Continuing Discontinued Total Total
Note £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Group revenue 2 296,956 70,164 367,120 429,531
Cost of sales {232,339) {58,572} {290,911 {341,608)
Exceptional trading balance release 3 8,831 - 8,831 -
Total cost of sales {223,508) (58,572) {282,080) (341,606}
Gross profit 73,448 11,592 85,040 87,925
Distribution expenses {27,867) {10,634) (38,501) {51,853)
Administrative expenses before exceptionat
restructuring costs, exceptional trading balance
release and impairment {28,976) (2,205) (31,181) {27,809)
Exceptional trading balance release 3 4,300 - 4,300 -
Exceptional restructuring costs and impairment 3 {3,936) (2,885} {6,821) (6,072
Administrative expenses (28,612} (5,090j {33,762} (33,881)
Operating profit/(loss) before exceptional
restructuring costs, exceptional frading balance
releases and impairment 7,774 (1,247) 6,527 8,263
Exceptional trading balance releases 3 13,131 - 13,131 -
Exceptional restructuring costs and impairment 3 {3,936) {2,885} {6,821) (6,072)
Operating profit/{loss) 26 16,969 {4,132) 12,837 2,191
Financial income 7 697 274 9 1,954
Financial expenses 7 {300) {53) {353} (685)
Net financing income 397 221 618 1,269
Share of loss of jointly controlled entities and
associales which are accounted for under the
equity method (401) - (401} (551)
Exceptional loss on sale of discontinued
operations 3 - (7,058) (7,058) -
Profiti{loss) before taxation 16,965 {10,969) 599 2,908
UK taxation {974) - {974) (848)
Overseas taxation {1,022) 171 {851) (852)
Taxation 8 {1,996) 171 (1,825) (1,700}
Profit/{loss) for the year 2 14,969 {10,798) 4,171 1,209
Altributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 14,780 {10,798) 3,982 1,105
Minority interests 189 - 189 104
Profit/(loss] for the year 2 14,969 {10,798) 4,171 1,208
Dividends 9 5,754 5,176
Basic earnings per share 4 9.7p {7.1p) 2.6p 0.8p
Diluted earnings per share 4 9.5p (6.9p) 2.6p 0.8p

*Refer to page 41 for the 2005 prior year analysis of continuing and discontinued activities.
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Morse plc
Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 30 June 2005

Total Total 2005
continuing discontinued Total
Note £'000 £:000 £'000
Group revenue 2 309,228 120,303 429,531
Cost of sales (241,469) (100,137) (341,6086)
Exceptional trading balance release 3 - - -
Total cost of sales (241,469) (100,137} (341,606}
Gross profit 67,759 20,166 87,825
Distribution costs (37,591) {14,262) {51,853)
Administrative expenses before exceptional restructuring costs
and exceptional trading balance release (24,088} (3,721) (27,809}
Exceptional trading balance release 3 - - -
Exceptional restructuring costs 3 {5,256) {816) (6,072)
Administrative expenses (29,344) {4,537} (33,881)
Operating profit before exceptional restructuring costs and
exceptional trading balance releases 6,080 2,183 8,263
Exceptional trading balance releases 3 - - -
Exceptional restructuring costs 3 {5,256) {816) (6,072
Operating profit 26 824 1,367 2,191
Financia! income 7 1,588 366 1,954
Financial expenses 7 {559} (126) (685)
Net financing income 1,029 240 1,269
Share of loss of jointly controlled entities and associates which
are accounted for under the equity method {551} - (551)
Profit before taxation 1,302 1,607 2,909
UK taxation (848) - {848)
Qverseas taxation (740} (112} (852)
Taxation ) 8 (1,588) {112) (1,700}
Profit/(loss) for the vear 2 {286) 1,495 1,209
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent {390} 1,495 1,105
Minority interests 104 - 104
Profit/(loss) for the year 2 (286) 1,485 1,209
Dividends 9 5,176
Basic garnings per share 4 {0.2p) 1.0p 0.8p
Diluted earnings per share 4 {0.2p} 1.0p 0.8p
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Morse plc

Consolidated statement of recognised income and expense

for the year ended 30 June 2006

Yearended Year ended
30 June 30 Jure
2006 2005
£'000 £'000
Note

Foreign exchange translation differences 22 267 {85)
Net income and expense recognised directly in equity 22 267 (85)
Profit for the year 4,171 1,209
Total recognised income and expense 4,438 1,124

Total recognised income and expense for the period is

attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 4,249 1,020
Minority interest 189 104
Total recognised income and expense 4,438 1,124
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Morse plc
Consolidated balance sheet
as at 30 June 2006
30 June 30 June
2006 2005
Note £000 £'000
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 11 3,615 4,391
Goadwill 10 51,168 55,018
Other intangibles 10 6,484 7,044
Investments 12 255 514
Qther financial assets 13 118 -
Deferred tax assets 14 50 30
Total non-current assets 61,691 66,997
Current assets
inventories 15 7,123 8,296
Assets classified as held for sale 25 34,400 19,329
Trade and other receivables 16 83,584 103,321
Cash and cash equivalents 17 17,800 40,015
Total current assets 142,907 170,861
Total assets 204,598 237,958
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 20 (350) {329)
Trade and other payables 18 (98,621} (142,533)
Tax payable (7,832) (9,502}
Financial liabilities 20 (206) -
Liabilities classified as held for sale 25 (28,176} (15,950}
Provisions 19 {1,621) {2,669)
Total current liabilities (136,8086) (170,983)
Non-current liabilities
Interast bearing loans and borrowings 20 {625) (584)
Deferred tax liability 14 (57) (158)
Provisions 19 {2,652) (1,758)
Yotal non-current liabilities {3,334) {2,500)
Net assets 64,458 64,475
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 21,22 15,338 15,106
Share capital to be issued 22 3,803 6,229
Share premium account 22 70,385 69,786
Other reserves 22 27,563 25,088
Relained earnings 22 _{52,776) {51,750)
Total equity attributable to equity
shareholders 64,313 64,459
Mingrity interest 22 145 16
Total equity 64,458 64 475
The ﬁna;iyb&wents were approved by the Board of Directors on 30 August 2006 and signed on its behalf by:

D Mctﬁh%

Director




Morse plc
Consolidated cash flow statement
for the year ended 30 June 2006

|
Year ended Year ended i
30 June 30 June
2006 2005 |
Note £'000 £'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 5,996 2,909
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 3,769 4,319
Financial income: (971) {1,954)
Financial expenses 353 685
Share of loss of jointly controlled entities and
assacigtes 12 401 551
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 239 36
Impairment of goodwill 10 2,293 -
Exceptional loss on sale of discontinued
operations 26 7,058 - -
Operating profit before changes in working capital l
and provisions 19,138 6,546 |
Decrease in inventories 673 4612 |
{Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables {2,821) 5,169
Decrease in trade and other payables (15,015) (17,692}
{Decrease)increase in provisions (154 3,271
Cash generated from operations 1,821 1,906
Interest received 971 1,954
Interest paid (353) (685)
Tax paid {3,518) (782)
Net cash from operating activities {1,079) 2,393
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 11 (2,157) (1.750)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and
equipment 66 68
Acquisitions of subsidiary in the peried, net of
cash acquired - (21,043)
Payment of deferred consideration on
acquisitions {51) (13)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and
equipment to joint venture - 214
Loan issued to associate 12 - {91}
Investment in joint venture 12 (700) {302)
Disposal of subsidiary, net of cash disposed 26 {1,099) -
Net cash from investing activities (3,941) {22,917)
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares 22 407 87
Repayment of 1oan notes on previous acquisitions (61) (88)
Proceeds from other loans 62 913
Payment of dividend to minarity interest 22 {60 {88}
Dividends paid 9 {5,754) _{5,176)
Net cash from financing activities {5,406) 4.352)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (10,426) (24,876)
Opening cash and cash equivalents 17 37,646 62,543
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held 43 {21}
Closing cash and cash equivalents 17 27,263 37,646
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Morse plc
Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2006

1 Accounting policies
Basis of preparation
Morse pic is a company incorporated in the UK,

The Group financial statements consolidate those of the Company and its subsidiaries {together referred to as the
“Group”) and equity account the Group’s interest in associates and jointly controlled entities. The parent company
financial statements present infarmation about the Company as a separate entity and not about its group.

The Group financial statements have been prepared and approved by the Directors in accardance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU ("Adopted [FRSs”). The Company has elected to prepare its
parent company financial statements in accordance with UK GAAP; these are presented on pages 91 to 99.

The accounting policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all periods
presented in these group financial statements and in preparing an opening IFRS bailance sheet at 1 July 2004 for
the purposes of the transition to Adopted IFRSs. In respect of financial instruments, the Group’s policy, as
permitted under IFRS 1, has been to adopt IAS 32 (Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation) and IAS 39
(Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement) from 1 July 2005. Comparatives have therefore not been
restated to reflect the requirements of 1AS 32 and IAS 3% and continue to be presented in accordance with UK
GAAP. Note 30 sets out the impact of the adoption of IAS 32 and 1AS 38 at 1 July 2005.

Judgements made by the Directors, in the application of these accounting policies that have significant effect on the
financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are discussed in
note 31.

Transition to Adopted IFRSs

The Group is preparing its financial statements in accordance with Adopted IFRSs for the first time and
consequently has applied IFRS 1. An explanation of how the transition to Adopted IFRSs has affected the reported
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Group is provided in note 34.

In addition to exempting companies from the requirement to restate comparatives for 1AS 32 and IAS 39, IFRS 1
grants certain exemptions from the full requirements of IFRSs in the transition period. The following exemptions
have been taken in these financial statements:

a) Business combinations: Morse pic has taken the exemption from restating business combinations occurring
hefore the date of transition, 1 July 2004.

b) Share-based payments: Morse plc has applied IFRS 2 only to share oplions and awards granted after 7
November 2002 that had not vested at 1 January 2005.

¢) Financial instruments: Morse plc has taken the exemption from applying 1AS 32 (Financial Instruments:
Disciosure and Presentation) and IAS 39 (Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement) to the
comparative information to be presented in the Group's first IFRS financial statements and has adopted 1AS 32
and IAS 39 with effect from 1 July 2005. As such, the 2005 comparative information relating to financial
instruments continues to be presented under the current UK GAAP FRS 13 basis. Note 30 sets out the impact
of the adoption of IAS 32 and |AS 39 at 1 July 2005.

d) Fair value or revaluation as deemed cost: Morse plc has not taken the option to restate items of property,
plant and equipment to their fair value at 1 July 2004, being the date of transition. Morse plc has elected for all
itemns to take their cost or revalued amount as shown previously under FRS 15 as their deemed cost under
IFRS.

e) Cumulative translation differences: Morse pic has taken the option to deem the cumulative level of translation
differences relating to foreign operations held within reserves to £nil at 1 July 2004.

Measurement convention

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except that the following assets and liabilities are
stated at their fair value; derivaiive financial instruments and financia! instruments classified as fair value through
the profit or loss. Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale are stated at the lower of previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.
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Morse plc
Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2006 (continued)

1 Accounting policies {continued)

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries are those entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the
power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that presently are exercisable or
convertible are taken into account. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances and any unrealised gains and losses or income and expenditure arising from
intra-group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

An associate is an undertaking in which the Group has a long-term interest, usually from 20% to 50% of
the equity voting rights, and over which it exercises significant influence. A joint venture is an
undertaking in which the Group has a long-term interest and over which it exercises joint control. The
Group's share of the profits less losses of associates and of joint ventures are inciuded in the
consolidated profit and loss account, and its interest in their net assets is included in investments in the
consolidated balance sheet.

Revenue

Revenue represents the values of goods delivered and services provided within the Group’s ordinary
activities net of value added tax and excluding intra-group sales. Revenue comprises sales of hardware,
software, consulting services and maintenance/support services.

Revenue recognition occurs when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, despatch has
occurred, the fee is determinable and collectability is probable.

Hardware and instaflation

Hardware sales are recognised on despatch, unless significant installation work is required or customer
specific conditions must be met, in which case revenues are recognised on installation or acceptance by
the customer,

Consulting services

Revenues include sales of services that are delivered over extended periods of time and recognised on a
percentage completion basis over the period that the service is delivered. Profits on fixed price contracts
are taken in proportion to the cost of work performed on each contract relative to the estimated total cost
of completing the contract. Revenues derived from variations on contracts are recognised only when
they have been agreed by the customer. Full provision is made for estimated losses on all contracts in
the year in which they are first foreseen.

The gross amount due from customers for contract work is included within trade and other receivables
and the gross amount due from suppliers is included within trade and other payables.

Sales of software

Revenue from the sale of software product licences at the time the software licence is granted is
recognised in accordance with the contract, typically at the time of supply of the software product to the
customer.

Maintenance & support
Revenues from maintenance and support services are recognised over the period that the services are
provided. Payments in advance of services are recorded in the balance sheet as deferred income.
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Morse plc
Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2006 {continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued}

Property, plant and equipment

The cost of the tangible fixed assets, net of estimated residual value and impairment, is depreciated in
equal annual instalments over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The residual values of assets or
group of like assets and the useful economic lives of assets are reviewed annually.

The rates of depreciation are as follows:

Leasehold improvements: Shorter of ten years and the unexpired expected term of the lease.
Fixtures and fittings: Four years.

Motor vehicles: Four years.

Office equipment: Four years except for computer equipment, which is depreciated by

40% in the year of acquisition and thereafter in equal annual
instalments over the next two years.

Intangible assets and goodwill

All business combinations are accounted for by applying the purchase method. Goodwill arising on the
acquisition of subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities represents the excess of the cost of
acquisition over the fair value to the Group of the net assets and any contingent liabilities acquired.

In respect of business combinations prior to 1 July 2004, goodwill represents the difference between the
cost of the acquisition and the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired. (ldentifiable intangibles
are those which can be sold separately or which arise from legal rights regardless of whether those rights
are separable).

In respect of acquisitions prior to 1 July 2004, goodwili is inciuded on the basis of deemed cost, which
represents the amount recorded under UK GAAP, (which was broadly comparable, save that only
separable intangibles were recognised and goodwill was amortised).

In accordance with IFRS 3, goodwill has been frozen at its net book value at 1 July 2004, is allocated to
cash-generating units and is not amortised, but instead is subject to annual impairment reviews.
Goodwill is stated at cost or deemed cost less accumulated impairment losses. Any impairment losses
are recognised immediately in the income statement. Negative goodwill arising on an acquisition is
recognised in the income statement.

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
Expenditure on development activities is capitalised if the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient resources to complete development. The expenditure
capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads.
Other development expenditure is recognised in the income statement as an expense as incurred.
Capitalised development expenditure is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Where no internally generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is
recognised as an expense in the period 1o which it relates.

Other intangible assets acquired by the Group are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation.

Amortisation is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the intangible assets unless such lives are indefinite. Intangible assets with indefinite lives are
systematically tested for impairment at each balance sheet date.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2006 {continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued]

Intangible assets and goodwill (continued)

Other intangible assets are amortised from the date they are available for use or acquired. The
estimated useful lives are as follows:

Trade names Ten years
Customer relationship backlog One year
Maintenance contracts Six years
Follow on consulting Eight years
Intellectual property Seven years

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure on capitalised tangible and intangible assets is capitalised only when it
increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other
expenditure is expensed as incurred.

Iimpairment

The carrying amounts of the Group's assets, other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each year-
end to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’'s
recoverable amount is estimated.

Far goodwill and intangible assets that are not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated
at each balance sheet date. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset
or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverabie amount. Impairment [osses are recognised in the
income statement.

Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to cash-generating units and then to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit on a pro-rata basis. A cash-generating unit is the smallest
identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows and that are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or groups of assets.

When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale financial asset has been recognised directly in
equity and there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, the cumulative loss that had been
recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss even though the financial asset has not been
de-recognised. The amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised in profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost and current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss.

Calctilation of recoverahle amount

The recoverable amount of the Group’s investments in held-to-maturity securities and receivables carried
at amortised cost is calculated as the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed on initial recognition of these
financial assets). Receivables with a short duration are not discounted.

The recoverable amount of other assets is the greater of their net selling price and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2006 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Impairment {continued)
Reversal of impairment

An impairment loss in respect of a held-to-maturity security or receivable carried at amortised cost is
reversed if the subsequent increase in recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after an impairment loss was recognised.

An impairment loss in respect of an investment in an equity instrument classified as available for sale is
not reversed through profit or loss. If a fair value of a debt instrument classified as available for sale
increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in profit or loss the impairment loss is reversed through the profit or loss.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

In respect of other assets an impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is reversed only fo the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment
loss had been recognised.

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

On initial classification as held for sale, non-current assets and disposal groups are measured at the
lower of the previous carrying amount and the fair value less costs to sell, with any adjustments taken to
profit or loss. The same applies to gains and losses on subsequent re-measurement. In accordance with
IFRS 5 the above policy is effective from 1 July 2004.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as
met only when the sale is highly probable within one year and the asset (or disposal group) is available
for immediate sale in its present condition.

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s business that represents a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale,
that has been disposed of, has been abandoned or that meets the criteria to be classified as held for
sale. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as
a completed sale within one year from the date of classification. Discontinued operations are presented
on the income statement (including the comparative period) as a column analysing the post tax profit or
loss of the discontinued operation and the post tax gain or loss recognised on the re-measurement to fair
value less costs to sell or on disposal of the assets/disposal groups constituting discontinued operations.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2006 (continued)

1 Accounting policies {continued)
Derivatives and other financial instruments
The Group's financial instruments comprise debtors, creditors, other borrowings and bank borrowings.

The Group uses a limited number of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to
fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. The Group does not hold or issue derivative instruments for
speculative purposes.

The Group uses foreign exchange forward contracts to manage the financial risks of changes in foreign
currency exchange rates. The Group does not apply hedge accounting and changes in the value of
derivative financial instruments are recognised in the income statement as they arise. Derivative financial
instruments are recognised at fair value. The fair value of forward exchange contracts is their quoted
market price at the balance sheet date, being the present value of the quoted forward price.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date
are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date. Foreign exchange differences arising on
translation are recognised in the income statement. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historicat cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the
date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated at foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
determined.

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
consolidation, are transiated at foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The revenues
and expenses of foreign operations are translated at an average rate for the period where this rate
approximates to the foreign exchange rates ruiing at the dates of the transactions. Exchange differences
arising from this translation of foreign operations are taken directly to the translation reserve. They are
released into the income statement upon disposal.

The Group has taken advantage of relief available in IFRS 1 to deem the cumulative translation
differences for all foreign operations to be zero at the date of transition to IFRS, 1 July 2004.

Taxation

The tax charge for the periods presented comprises current and deferred fax. Taxation is recognised in
the income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which
case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the period using tax rates enacted or

substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior
periods.
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1 Accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences
between the carrying amount for financial reporting purposes and those for taxation purposes. The
following temporary differences are not provided for: goodwill not deductible for tax purposes; initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit other than in a business
combination and differences relating o investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date. A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised.

Leases

Operating leases and rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised in the income
statement as an integral part of the total lease expense.

Net financing costs

interest income and interest payable is recognised in the profit or loss as it accrues, using the effective
interest method. Dividend income is recognised in the income statement on the date the entity’s right to
receive the payment is established.

Pension costs

Payments made to defined contribution schemes are charged to the income statement as they accrue.
Assets of the schemes are not included within the financial statements of the Group.

Share-based compensation

The share option programme allows Group employees to acquire shares of the ultimate parent company;
these awards are granted by the ultimate parent. Share options have been granted to Monitise Ltd
employees under the Monitise share option plan. Options granted under the Group’s share option
schemes are equity settled.

The fair value of options granted is recognised as an employee expense with a corresponding increase in
equity. The fair value is measured at grant date and spread over the period during which the employees
become unconditionally entitied to the options. The fair value of the options granted is measured using a
Black-Scholes model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted.
The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of share options that vest.

interest in own shares
The assets and liabilities of the Group ESOP trusts are recognised in the financial statements where

there is de facto control of those assets and liabilities. The Company's own shares held in ESOP trust
are deducted from shareholders’ funds until they vest unconditionally with employees.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2006 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

The Group manages its short-term liquidity through holding of cash and highly liquid interest bearing
deposits. For the purpose of the cash flow statement only deposits with a maturity period of three months
or less are shown as cash and cash equivalents. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand are
shown as cash and cash equivalents.

Provisions

Provision is made where the Group has a present [egal or contractual obligation as a result of past
events and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation.

A provision for restructuring is recognised when the Group has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring
that has been communicated to affected parties.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less associated transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between cost and redemption value being recognised in the income statement over the period
of the borrowings on an effective interest basis.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on a weighted
average basis and includes expenditure incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Net realisable value is the amount that can be realised from the sale of inventories in the
normal course of business after allowing for the costs of realisation.

Trade receivables

Trade and other receivables are stated at their nominal amount (discounted if material) less impairment
losses,

Trade payables

Trade and other payables are stated at cost.

Dividends

Dividends receivable are recognised when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

Dividends payable to the Company’s shareholders are recognised as a liability and deducted from
shareholders’ equity in the period in which the shareholders’ right to receive payment is established.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2006 (continued)

1 Accounting policies {continued)
Adopted IFRS not yet applied

The Group has not applied the following Standards and Interpretations that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

. IFRS 6 “Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources”.

. IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures” (and consequential amendments to I1AS 1, IFRS 1 and

IFRS 4).
|
. IFRIC 4 “Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease”. |
|
. IFRIC 5 “Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, Restoration and Environmental

Rehabilitation Funds”.

. IFRIC 6 “Liabilities arising from Participation in a Specific Market — Waste Electrical and Electronic
Equipment”.

. IFRIC 7 "Applying the Restatement Approach under I1AS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary
Economies”.

The Group will apply the above standards and interpretations in the financial statements for the year
ending 30 June 2007 and subsequent periods. The standards and interpretations that may impact the
financial statements are as follows:

. IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures” introduces new disclosures in relation to financial
instruments. Implementation of these will not affect the balance sheet or income statement as the
standard and related amendments are concerned with disclosure.

. IFRIC 4 "Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease”. Management does not expect
adoption of this to have a significant impact on the Group’s financial statements but will continue to
review this.

. IFRIC 6 "Liabilities arising from Participation in a Specific Market — Waste Electrical and Electronic
Equipment”. Management does not expect adoption of this to have a significant impact on the
Group's financial statements but will continue to review this.

Segmental information

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing products or
services (business segment), or in providing products or services within a particular economic
(geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other
segments.

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those
that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.
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Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 30 June 2006 (continued)

2 Segmental reporting

Segmental analysis

The Group’s primary reporting format is business segments and its secondary format is geographical
segments. The business segment reporting format reflects the Group’s management and internal
reporting structure.

Business segments

The following tables present revenue, expenditure and certain asset information regarding the Group’s
business segments for the years ended 30 June 2006 and 2005.

Year endad 30 June 2006

Piscontinued
Technology Business  Management Total QOperations
& Integration Consulting Consulting Europe Sottware Group  Continuing (Europs) Total
£'000 £000 £°000 £000 £'000 £000 £°000 £000 £'000
Revenue
Sales to external customers 140,744 79,062 14,092 56,786 6,272 - 296,956 70,164 367,120
Inter-segment sales 4,175 3,194 - 14 - - 7,383 - 7,383
Segmental revenue 144,818 82,256 14,092 56,800 6,272 - 304,339 70,164 374,503
Operating profiti{ioss) before
exceptional items 2,558 5,820 2,187 3,386 {1,911} {4,266) 7,774 (1,247) 6,527
Exceptional trading balance releases 13,13 - - - - - 13,131 - 131
Exceptionat restructunng costs and
impainnent {3.626) {310) - - - - {3,936) (2,885) 6,821)
Operating profiti(loss) 12,063 5,510 2,187 3,388 (1,911} {4,266) 16,969 (4,132) 12,837
Net finance income 618
Share of loss of jointly controlled
entities and associates {401)
Exceptional loss on sale of
discontinued activities (7.G58)
Taxalion _ne2s)
Profit for the year 4,171
Technology Discontinued
Business  Managemaent & Integration Total Cparations
Consulting Consulting Europe Software and Group  Continying {Europe} Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000
Assets and liabilities
Segment assets 51,937 18,438 28,845 3,959 50,763 169,943 34,400 204,343
Investment in a joint venture - - - - 255 255 - 255
Total assets 57,937 18,439 28,845 3,959 £§1,018 170,198 34,400 204 598
Segment liabilities 11,570 3,113 17,319 1,287 78,675 111,884 28176 140,140
Total liabilities 11,570 3,113 17,319 1,287 78675 111,984 28,176 140,140

Cther segment information

Capital expenditura:
Properiy, plant and equipment 1,480 63 196 21 282 2,042 15 2,157
Intangible fixed assets - - - - - .

Non-cash costs

Depreciation 744 157 308 55 854 2,116 648 2,764
Amortisation 1,005 - - - - 1,005 - 1,005
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2 Segmental reporting (continued)
Year ended 30 June 2005
Discontinued
Technology & Business Maragemeant Tatal Operations
Integration Consulting Consulting Europe Software Graup Continuing {Europe) Total
£900 £'000 £'900 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Revenue
Sales to external customers 188,522 60,369 42,474 43,423 4,440 - 309,228 120,303 429,631
Inter-segment sales 1,350 1,834 - 4,866 - - 8,050 58 8,108
Segmental revenue 189,872 62,203 12,474 48,280 4,440 - 317,278 120,361 437,639

Qperating profiti(ioss) befare

exceplional items 1,155 5,336 2,285 3,258 (819) (5,015} 6,080 2,183 8,263
Exceptional trading balance releases - - - - - - - -
Exceptional restructuring costs and

impaiment _{3,043) (2,213) - - - - (5.256) (818} {6,072}

Operating profitifloss) {1.888) 3123 2265 3.258 (919) {5.015) 824 1,367 2,191
Net finance income 1,26¢
Share of loss of jointly controlied
enlities and associates {651)
Taxation {1,700}
Prafit for the year 1,209
Technology Discontinued
Business fanagement & Integration Totaf Qperations
Consulting Cansutting Europe Software and Group Continuing (Europe) Total
£000 £o00 £'000 £'000 £000 £'D0o0 £000 £000
Assets and [(abilities
Segment assets 50,645 17,298 46,457 1.909 101,919 218,228 19,329 237,557
Investment in a joint venture - - - - 401 401 - 401
Total asseis 50,645 17,298 46,457 1,809 102,320 218,828 19,329 237,958
Segment liabilities 10,227 2.803 38,641 1216 104,746 167 533 15,850 173,483
Total liabilities. 10,227 2803 38,541 1.216 104,746 157,533 15,850 173,483

Oiher segment informatien

Capital expenditure:
Propenty, plant and equipment 341 422 374 - 408 1,635 115 1,750
Intangible fixed assels - - - - - - - .

Non-cash costs
Depreciation 658 82 554 156 1,527 2978 243 3221
Amartisation 1,099 - - - - 1,008 - 1.09%

The assets and liabilities of Technology & Integration and of Group are managed collectively (for
example, cash is managed on this basis) and are therefore not capable of any meaningful separation.

Discontinued operations for the year ended 30 June 2006 comprise Morse Germany and Morse Austria,
which were part of the Europe business until their disposal on 24 July 2006. The assets and liabilities of
these operations have been classified on the 2006 balance sheet as being held for sale.

Discontinued operations for the year ended 30 June 2005 comprise Morse France, Morse Germany and
Morse Austria, which were part of the Europe business until their disposal. The assets and liabilities of
Morse France have been classified on the 2005 balance sheet as being held for sale.

The Technology & Integration segment comprises Morse Group Limited.

The Business Consulting segment was created from the consulting business of Morse UK together with
the consultancy businesses of Diagonal following its acquisition in August 2004. It has three main lines of
business: Diagonal Consulting Glohal {covering our Oracle, SAP, enterprise service management and
information management capability); Delphis (which specialises in providing resources at the
infrastructure layer, mainly to the banking sector); and Marshall-Wilkins (an IT recruitment business).

The Management Consulting segment comprises four businesses; CSTIM, Morse Sl, SkillsHub and
Morse Transaction Services.

The European segment comprises the operations in Spain and Ireland.

The software segment comprises Monitise Limited and Diagonal Solutions Limited {(Wisdom™).
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2 Segmental reporting (continued)

Geographic segments

The following tables present revenue and asset information for the geographical segments for the years

ended 30 June 2006 and 2005.

Discontinued
Total operations

2006 UK Europe Rest of world continuing (Europe} Totai

£'000 £000 £000 £°000 £000 £000
Revenue
Sales to external customers 229,522 57,752 9,682 296,956 70,164 367,120
Inter-segment sales 7,369 14 - 7,383 - 7,383
Total 236,801 57,766 9,682 304,339 70,164 374,503
2005
Revenue
Sales to external customers 256,447 46,874 5,907 309,228 120,303 429,531
Inter-segment sales 3.184 4,866 - 8,050 58 8,108
Total 259,631 51,740 5,907 317,278 120,361 437,639
Year ended 30 June 2006
Segment assets 141,098 26,270 2,575 169,943 34,400 204,243
Investment in a joint venture 255 - - 255 - 255
Total assets 141,353 26,270 2,575 170,198 34,400 204,598
Cther segmental information
Capital expenditure:
Property, plant and equipment 1,846 196 - 2,042 115 2,157
Intangihie fixed assets - - - - - -
Depreciation 1,810 306 - 2,116 648 2,764
Amortisation 1,005 - - 1,005 - 1,005
Year ended 30 June 2005
Segment assets 171,771 44 857 1,600 218,228 19,320 237,557
Investment in a joint venture 401 - - 401 - 4
Total assets 172,472 44,857 1,600 218,629 19,329 237,958
Other segmental information
Capital expenditure:
Property, plant and eguipment 1,261 374 - 1,635 115 1,750
Intangible fixed assets - - - - - -
Depreciation 2,424 554 - 2,978 243 3,221
Amortisation 1,099 - - 1,099 - 1,099
In the year ending 30 June 2006 revenue comprised £167,720,000 (2005:£239,487,000) of goods
revenue and £199,400,000 (2005: £190,044,000) of services revenue.
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3 Exceptional items
2006 2005
£7000 £'000
Trading balance releases 13,131 -
Impairment of goodwill {(2,293) -
Restructuring costs {4,528) {6,072)
Loss on sale of discontinued operation (7,058) -
(748) 6072)

The trading balance credit has arisen from our normal business review of these balances. With the changing shape
of our business and in particular the reduced level of infrastructure business {a reduction of approximately £300
million since its peak) credit balances are no longer being created at the same level as they are released. In
accordance with normal accounting practices these releases are made when confirmed with the appropriate
counterparty. In the year ended 30 June 2006 an amount of  £13,131,000 {(2005: £1,100,000) has been credited
to the income statement. This has been highlighted because of the magnitude of the release in this period.

The completion of sale of Morse GmbH on 24 July 2006 has indicated the need for an impairment of £2,293,000 in
the carrying value of the goodwill and this is included in the resuits.

Restructuring costs of £4,528,000 incurred in the year ended 30 June 2006 related mainly to headcount reductions
in the United Kingdom and Germany and property costs in the United Kingdom, and were incurred as a part of the
restructuring in these countries. Restructuring costs of £4,353,000

(2005: £2,782,000) have been paid in the year.

On 12 July 2005 Morse pic announced the disposal of its business in France, Morse SAS, for a maximum
consideration of €1,000,000 (approximately £690,000} comprising an initial consideration of €1 and a further
€1,000,000 (approximately £690,000) payable in cash in the peried to 30 June 2007, if the business achieves
certain financial targets. The sale of the business resulted in an exceptional loss of £7,058,000 in the period to 30
June 2006.

The tax effect of the exceptional items is a credit of £2,825,000 {2005: charge of £1,084,000).
4 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the earnings attributable to Ordinary shareholders by the
weighted average number of Ordinary shares in issue during the year, excluding those held in the Employee Benefit
Trusts (note 5) which are treated as cancelled.

For diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of Ordinary shares in issue is adjusted to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential Ordinary shares.

Reconciliations of the earnings and weighied average number of shares used in the calculation are set cut below:

2006 2005
Weighted 2006 Weighted 2005
2006 average number Per share 2005 average number Per share
Earnings of shares amount Eamings of shares amount
£'000 {thousands) pence £'000 (thousands) pence
Basic EPS
Profit attributable to
Ordinary shareholders 3,982 154,827 2.6 1,105 145,452 0.8
Effect of dilutive
securities options - 2,128 - - 1,316 -
Effect of deferrad
consideration 1o be
issued within one year - 1,745 - - - -
Diiuted EP$ 3,982 155,700 2.6 1,105 146,768 0.8

The number of potentially dilutive opticns that are currently non diluting are 4,328,991 (2005: 6,632,623).
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4 Earnings per share (continued)
Continued operations

Basic earnings per share of 9.7p (2005: loss 0.2p) for continuing operations is calculated from the net
profit attributable to equity holders of the parent from continuing operations of £14,780,000 (2005: loss
£390,000) divided by the weighted average number of shares. Diluted eamings per share is calculated by
dividing the profit of £14,780,000 (2005: loss £390,000) by the diluted number of shares per the table on
page 57.

Discontinued operations

Basic loss per share of 7.1p (2005: earnings per share 1.0p} for discontinued operations is calculated
from the net loss attributable to equity holders of the parent from discontinuing operations of £10,798,000
{2005: profit £1,495,000) divided by the weighted average number of shares. Diluted loss per share is
calculated by dividing the loss of £10,798,000 {2005: profit £1,495,000) by the diluted number of shares
per the table on page 57.

To provide a comparable measure of performance per share from the normal operations of the business,
a supplementary EPS has been calculated in addition to the disclosure required by IAS 33 with the
following adjustments to the basic and diluted EPS.

2006
Weighted 2005
average 2006 Weighted 2005
2006 number of Per share 2005 average number Per share
Earnings shares amount Earnings of shares amount
£°000 (thousands) pence £'000 (thousands) pence
Basic EPS 3,982 151,827 2.6 1,105 145,452 0.8
Excepticnal items 748 - 0.5 6,072 - 4.2
Tax on exceptional
items 2,825 : - 1.9 {1,084) - _(0.8)
Adjusted
basic
EPS 7,555 151,827 5.0 6,093 145,452 4.2
Diluied EPS 3,982 155,700 2.6 1,105 148,768 0.8
Exceptional items 748 - 0.5 6,072 - 42
Tax on exceptional
items 2,825 - 1.8 {1,084) - 0.8)
Adjusted diluted
EPS 7,555 155,700 4.9 6,083 148,768 4.2

58




Morse plc
Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2006 (continued)

5 Information regarding employees, Directors and their interests
{a} Directors’ remuneration
2006 2005
£600 £000
Aggregate emoluments 1,533 1,258
Gains made on exercise of options - 9
Group contributions to defined contribution schemes S 54 36
1,587 1,303

In 2006 five Directors (2005: four) had benefits accruing to them under defined contribution schemes.

More detailed disclosures of Direciors’ remuneration are made in the Remuneration Committee report {(on
page 35).

(b) Employees

2006 2005
Number Number
Average monthly number of persons employed
(including Directors) by the Group during the year:
Management and administration 250 348
Sales and technical staff B 1,330 ) 1,322
1,620 1,670
(c) Staff costs (including Directors)
2006 2005
£'000 £000
Wages and salaries 84,895 79,986
Social security costs 10,257 11,620
Other pension costs 7 7 1,336 ] 2,036
96,488 93,642
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5 Information regarding employees, Directors and their interests {continued)

{d) Employee Share Schemes

Employee Option Scheme

Unapproved Executive Option Scheme
Unapproved Executive Option Scheme
Delphis EBT Share Option Scheme
Sharesave Option Scheme 3
International Sharesave Cption Scheme 2

Unapproved and Approved Executive Share Qption
Scheme 2000

Unapproved and Approved Executive Share Option
Scheme 2000

Unapproved and Approved Executive Share Option
Scheme 2000

Sharesave Cption Scheme 4
Intesnational Sharesave Option Scheme 4

Sharesave Option Scheme 5

International Sharesave Option Scheme 5

Unapproved and Approved Executive Share Option
Scheme 2000

Unapproved and Approved Executive Share Option
Scheme 2000

Sharesave Option Scheme 6
Korse plc Long Term Incentive Plan

Unapproved and Appraved Executive Share Option
Scheme 2000

Morse LTIP Scheme
Morse LTIP Scheme
Morse LT!P Scheme

Unapproved and Approved Executive Share Option
Scheme 2000

Sharesave Option Schame 7

Unapproved and Approved Executive Share Cption
Scheme 2000

Morse LTIP Scheme
Morse LTIP Scheme

Unapproved and Approved Executive Share Option
Scherne 2000

Options
outstanding over
10p Ordinary
shares at

30 June 2005

824,911
310,000
197,369
583,613

63,085

52,665

393,181

512,674

1,060,628
381,780
155,984

86,852
3.312

235,638

231,667
749,042

1,125,000

511,667

Exercise price
£2.50
£2.50

E2.275
£ni)

£1.06

£1.06

£1.98

£1.12

£1.04

£0.80

£0.90

£1.028

£1.028

£1.358

£1.375
£0.91

£nil

£0.89
£nil
Enil

Enil

£0.93

£0.73

£1.08
£nil

£nil

£1.07

Period during which options

exercisable

Apr 2000-Mar 2009
far 2002-Mar 2009
Sep 2002-5ep 2008
May 2001 -May 2006
Nov 2004-Apr 2005

Nov 2004-Apr 2005
Apr 2005-Apr 2012
Cet 2005-0ct 2012

Jul 2006-Jut 2613
Jan 2006-Jun 2066
Jan 2006-Jun 2006
Jan 2007-Jun 2007
Jan 2007-Jun 2007

Jul 2007-Apr 2014

Jul 2007-Apr 2014
Feb 2008-Jul 2008

Dec 2007-0ec 2008

Jul 2008-Apr 2015
Sep 2008-Sep 2009
Sep 2008-Sep 2009

Sep 2008-Sep 2009

Jul 2008-Mar 2016

Feb 2009-Jut 2009

Jul 2009-Mar 2016
Mar 2009-Mar2010

Mar 2009-Mar 2010

Jul 2609-Mar 2016

Cptions
outstanding
aver 10p
Ordinary
shares at 30
June 2006
544,778
182,000
135,571
409,623

19,132

87,570

17,044

55,628

231,667
437,484

875,600

461 667
282,500
75,000

50,000

200,000

1,000,524

19,000
444,444

214,953

102,800
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5 -Information regarding employees, Directors and their interests (continued)

{d) Employee Share Schemes (continued)

Options
Options outstanding
outstanding over over 10p
10p Ordinary Ordinary
shares Period during which options shares at
at 30 June 2005 Exercise price exercisable 30 June 2006
Monitise Options
Date of listing or
sale of business
Monitise Share Option Plan . F0.0001 to Oct 2015 45,000
Date of listing or
sale of business
Monitise Share Option Plan - £0.0001 to Apr 2016 10,000
The above Monitise share options are for Monitise Group Limited shares and not Morse plc shares
Diagonal Options
Diagonal Long Term Incentive Flan 279,606 £nil Mar 2007-Mar 2014 194,563
Diagonal Employee Share Option Scheme 261,184 £1.26 Mar 2007-Mar 2014 234,807
Claritas Share Option Scheme 6,563 £1.67 Oct 2002-Oct 2009 6,563
Diagonal Shargsave Option Scheme
5 Years 375 £18.00 May 2005-Dct 2005 -
Diagonal Sharesave Option Scheme
5 Years 675 £5.00 May 2006-Oct 2006 675
Diagonal Sharesave Option Scheme
3 Years 7112 £E1.87 May 2005-Oct 2005 -
Ciagonal International Sharesave Option Scheme 3
Years 11,176 £1.87 May 2005-Get 2005 -
Diagenal Sharesave Option Schems
5 Years 27,968 £1.87 May 2007-Oct 2007 10,266
Diagonal Sharesave Option Scheme
3 Years 274,586 £0.88 May 2006-Oct 2006 63,352
Diagonal International Sharesave Option Scheme 3
Years 94,500 £0.88 May 2005-Oct 2006 47,250
Diagonal Sharesave Option Scheme
5 Years 100,784 £0.88 May 2008-Oct 2008 100,784
Ciagoral Sharesave Option Scheme
3 Years 04,752 £0.90 May 2007-Oct 2007 73,840

Diagonal Sharesave Option Scheme
5 Years 36,332 £0.90 May 2009-Cct 2009 -

Diagonal Plc option schemes relate to option plans in place in Diagonal Plc at the time of acquisition by Morse pic.
The schemes have retained the same terms and conditions as before but are now options for Merse plc shares.

The Morse Group operates its share schemes in conjunction with Employee Benefit Trusts. At the year end the
Morse Employee Benefit Trust held 268,165 shares (2005: 268,165) in the Company of which nil (2005: nil) have
share options held over them. The Delphis Employee Benefit Trust holds 712,656 shares (2005: 823,041) of which
409,623 (2005: 583,613) have share options held over them. The Diagonal Employee Benefit Trust holds 151,524
shares (2005: 151,524) shares all of which have share options held over them.
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5 Information regarding employees, Directors and their interests (continued)

(e) Share based payments

The fair value of the Share Option Scheme and the Performance Related Share Option Scheme
plans are estimated as at the date of grant using a Black-Scholes model.

The following table gives the assumptions made during the year ended 30 June 2006:

Share options granted to LTIP schemes

Nature of the arrangemerit

Date of grant

Number of instruments granted
Exercise price

Share price at date of grant
Contractual life (years)

Vesling conditions

Expected volatility

Expected option life at grant (years}
Risk free interest rate

Dividend yield

Fair value per granted instrument
determined at grant date

Employee share scheme 2000

Nature of the arrangement

Date of grant

Number of instruments granted
Exercise price

Share price at date of grant
Contractual life {years)

Vesting conditions

Expected volatility

Expected option life at grant (years)
Risk free interest rate

Dividend yield

Fair value per granted instrument
determined at grant date

Grant of
share
options
December
2004
1,125,000
Enil

£0.96

4
Shareholder
return and
EPS growth
in real
terms.
47.9%

35

4.47%
3.54%

£0.84

Grant of
share
options
April
2003
1,519,428
£1.04
£1.04

10
Growth in
EPS of
RPI plus
5%.
63.2%

6

4.18%
3.03%

£0.50

Grant of Grant of Grant of

share share share

options options oplions

September September September

2005 2005 2005

410,000 75,000 50,000

£nit £nil £nit

£0.99 £0.98 £0.86

4 4 4

Shareholder Shareholder  Shareholder

return and return and return and

EPS growth EPS growth  EPS growth

in real in real in real

terms, terms. terms.

45.3% 45.3% 45.3%

35 35 35

4.21% 4.21% 4.21%

3.79% 3.83% 4.38%

£0.86 £0.84 £0.73
Grant of Grant of Grant of Grant of
share share share share
options options options options
December April April  September
2003 2004 2005 2005
287,184 231,667 511,667 200,000
£1.36 £1.38 £0.89 £0.93
£1.36 £1.38 £0.89 £0.87
105 10.25 10 10
Growth in Growthin ~ Growth in Growth in
EPS of EPS of EPS of EPS of
RPI plus RPI plus RPI plus RPI plus
5%. 5%. 5%. 5%.
60.1% 58.6% 55.5% 57.4%
6 6 6 6
4.73% 4.93% 4.51% 4.25%
2.32% 2.33% 3.93% 4.31%
£0.67 £0.67 £0.36 £0.34

Grant of
Share
options
March
2006
444,444
£nil

£1.09

4
Shareholder
return and
EPS growth
in real
terms.
43.9%

3.5

4.44%
3.49%

£0.96

Grant of
share
options
March
2006
19,000
£1.09
£1.09
10
Growth in
EPS of
RPI plus
5%.
54.2%

6

4.40%
3.45%

£0.45

Grant

of share
options
March
2006
214,953

£nil

£1.07

4

Shareholder
return and
EPS growth
in raal

terms,
43.8%

35

4.73%

3.55%

£0.,95

Grant of
share
options
March
2006
102,800
£1.07
£1.07

10
Growth in
EPS of
RP1 plus
5%.
54.2%

B

4.39%
3.55%

£0.44
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5 Information regarding employees, Directors and their interests (continued)

{e} Share based payments {continued)

Save As you Earn Schemes

Mature of the arrangement Grant of Grant of Grant of

share share share

options options options

Date of grant November December December

2003 2004 2005

Number of instruments granted 164,626 841,078 1,050,473

Exercise price £1.03 £0.91 £0.73

Share price at date of grant £ia £0.99 £0.95

Contractual life {years) 35 35 35

Vesting conditions 3 years 3 years 3 years

service service service

Expected volatility 61.2% 53.60% 45.30%

Expected option life at grant (yearsj 3.5 35 3.5

Risk free interest rate 4.84% 4.48% 4.42%

Dividend yield 2.60% 3.43% 3.95%
Fair value per granted instrument

determined at grant date £0.56 £0.36 £0.35

Diagonal schemes

Nature of the arrangement Grant of Grant of Grant of Grant of Grant of Grant of

share share share share share share

options options options options options options

Date of grant March March March March March March

2004 2004 2003 2003 2004 2004

Number of instruments granted 333,680 284,333 100,784 444,252 115,723 36,332

Exercise price £nil £1.26 £0.88 £0.88 £0.90 £0.90

Share price at date of grant £1.22 £1.22 £1.10 £1.10 £1.13 £1.13

Contractual life (years) 10 10 55 35 35 55

Vesting conditions 3 years 3 years 3 years 3 years 3 years 5 years

service service service service service service

Expected volatility 58.9% 58.9% 63.5% 67.2% 58.4% 58.9%

Expected option life at grant (years) B8 6 55 3.5 3.5 55

Risk free interest rate 4.67% 467% 4.06% 3.81% 4.58% 4,66%

Dividend vigld 2.62% 2.62% 2.86% 2.86% 2.83% 2.83%
Fair value per granted instrument

delermined at grant date £1.04 £0.57 £0.57 £0.54 £0.51 £0.57

In accordance with IFRS 2, the 45,000 Monitise share options granted on 1 November 2005 and the
10,000 Monitise share options granted on 18 April 2006 per note (5d) have not been fair valued.

The expected life of the options is based on historical data and is not necessarily indicative of
exercise patterns that may occur.

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the recent historical volatility is indicative of future
trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other features of the options granted were incorporated into the measurement of fair
value.

The Directors consider that the value of Diagonal shares can be calculated on the same basis as the
Morse plc shares as the nature of Diagonal shares are consistent with those of Morse plc.
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6 Operating profit/(loss)

2006 2005
£'000 £'000
Operating profit/(loss) is stated after charging:
Auditors’ remuneration:
- Audit fee 393 385
- Non-audit fees 201 178
- Management consultancy fees - -
Net foreign currency differences 121 44
Operating lease rentals:
- plant and machinery 1,296 2,226
- other 3,334 4 211
Research and development 1,332 284
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2,764 3,221
Amortisation of intangible assets 1,005 1,156
Loss on disposal of tangible fixed assels 239 36

The Company audit fee for the year was £36,000 (2005: £35,000).

Non-audit fees paid to auditors relate to taxation advice and in the year ended 30 June 2005 services in
relation to acquisitions. In addition to the non-audit fees above, £375,000 was capitalised in the year
ended 30 June 2005 in relation to the acquisition of Diagonal. The auditors do not provide management

consultancy services to the Group.

7 Finance income and expense

2006 2005

£'000 £000
Bank interest income 351 438
Other interest income 614 1,516
Interest from associate 6 -
Financial income 971 1,854
Bank loans and overdrafts interest expense (154) (660)
Other loans interest expense {199) {25)
Financial expenses (353) {685)

Included within other interest receivable is interest earned from cash invested in Open Ended Investment

Companies (further details provided in note 20).
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8 Tax on ordinary activities
Corporation tax
2006 2005
£000 £:000
tUnited Kingdom corporation tax at 30% (2005: 30%) 3,978 1,757 !
Adjustment to corporation tax provision from prior years (2,927) (772)
Qverseas tax on profit for the year 895 852
Current tax 1,946 1,837
Deferred tax (note 14) {121) (137}
Total tax charge 1,825 © 1,700

The tax charge is higher than the UK rate of 30% because of non-deductible costs, primarily the
amortisation of goodwili, and certain exceptional costs, offset by the benefit of credits resulting from the
resolution of prior year tax positions.

The prior year tax credits are in relation to the German and French businesses which are no longer likely
to crystalise

Reconciliation of the Group’s current tax charge to the United Kingdom statutory rate:

2006 2005

£000 £'000
Profit before tax 5,996 2,909
Tax on profit before tax at 30% (2005: 30%) 1,800 873
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes including
amortisation of intangible assets 1,135 1,637
Loss not deductible on sale of France 2,417 -
Profit and loss items not taxable {524) -
Losses of overseas undertakings not available for relief 462 606
Losses of overseas undertakings utilised in the peried (45) {581)
Difference between UK and overseas standard tax rates (193) {63)
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of previous periods (2,927) {772)
Total tax charge 1,825 1,700

As at 30 June 2006 the Group has overseas tax losses estimated at £14,200,000 (2005: £25,000,000)
against which no deferred tax asset has been recognised due to uncertainty over the availability of future
profits from which the future reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducted. The tax
losses for the year ended 30 June 2006 relate to Morse GmbH which was disposed of on 24 July 2006
{note 29).
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9 Dividends paid and proposed

2006 2005
£000 £000
Declared and paid during the year:
Equity dividend on ordinary shares:
Final dividend for 2005; 2.6p (2004: 2.35p) 3,921 3,095
interim dividend for 2006: 1.2p (2005: 1.15p) 1,833 1,708
Under provision from previous years - 373
5,754 5176
Proposed for approval at AGM
(not recognised as a liability as at 30 June)
Equity dividend on Ordinary shares:
Final dividend for 2006: 2.7p (2005: 2.6p) 4,141 3,921
10  Goodwill and other intangible fixed assets
Customer
Intellectual relationship Maintenance Follow-on Trade
property backlog contracts consulting narmes Goodwill Total
£2000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Cost
At 1 July 2004 - - - 25,393 25,393
Acquisitions - 376 399 5,521 1,847 29,625 37.768
At 1 July 2005 . 376 399 5,521 1,847 55,018 63,161
Reclassified to assets
held for sale - - {3,850) (3.850)
Additions 445 - - - 445
At 30 June 2006 445 376 399 5,521 1,847 51,168 59,756
Amortisation
AL1 July 2004 - -
Charge for the vear - 313 57 574 155 - 1,099
At 1 July 2005 - 313 57 574 155 - 1,099
Charge for the year - 63 66 690 186 1,005
impairment charge - - - - 2,293 2,293
Reclassified to assets
held for sale - (2,293)  (2,293)
At 30 June 2006 - 376 123 1,264 341 - 2,104
Net hook value
At 30 June 2006 45 276 4,257 1,506 51,168 57,652
At 30 June 2005 - 83 342 4,947 1,692 55,018 62,062
At 30 June 2004 - - - - - 25,393 25,393

Other intangible assets total £6,484,000 (2005: £7,044,000). Other intangible assets acquired in the year

ended 30 June 2006 totalled £445,000 (2005: £8,143,000).
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10  Goodwill and other intangible fixed assets (continued)
Impairment testing of indefinite lived goodwill

Goadwill acquired through business combinations has been allocated to the cash-generating units of
Morse Spain, Morse lreland, MT&I, Morse GmbH, Business Consulting and Management Consulting for
impairment testing. These are the lowest level of cash-generating units that can be reliably and
separately identified.

No impairment is required, except in the case of Morse GmbH (£2,293,000) which was sold on 24 July
2006.

The recoverable amounts of these cash-generating units have been determined based on a value in use
calculation. Senior management have based these calculations on current approved budgeted cashflows
in perpetuity. The discount rate applied to cash flow projections is a pre-tax rate of 13% (2005: 13%).

Key assumptions used in value in use calculation for all cash-generating units for 30 June 2006 and 30
June 2005 are:

« Budgeted revenue - the basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted revenue is
long-run market growth forecasts;

» Budgeted gross margin — the basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted gross
margins is the average gross margins achieved for the year immediately before the budgeted
year, adjusted for expected long-run market pricing trends.

The following companies have significant carrying amounts of goodwill:

2006 2005
£000 £'000
Business Consulting 29,625 29,625
Management Consulting 13,105 13,105
MT&I 5,717 5,717
Morse ireland 2,169 2,169
Morse Spain 552 552
Morse GmbH - 3,850
51,168 55,018
The remaining amortisation periods of the intangible assets held as at 30 June 2006 are as follows:
Maintenance contracts 4 years, 2 months
Follow on consulting 6 years, 2 months
Trade names . 8 years, 2 months
Intellectual property 7 years

Goodwill is not being amortised.

Intellectual Property Rights transferred represent core elements of the accumulated knowledge and
technical know-how built up whilst developing our mabile banking solution. On commencement of
service, the intangible asset is to be amortised over management’s estimate of a 7 year useful life.

Amortisation is charged to distribution expenses.
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1 Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold Office Fixtures Motor
improvements equipment and fittings vehicles Total
£'000 £000 £000 £000 £'000

Cost
At 1 July 2004 2,359 11,213 8,023 455 22,050
Additions 315 1,258 165 46 1,784
Transfers to joint
ventures - (529) - - (529)
Acquisitions 11 1,518 323 21 1,873
Disposals (4) {1,016) {99) (164) (1,283)
Reclassified to assets
held for sale (405) (885) (638) (82) (2,010)
At 1 July 2005 2,276 11,559 7,774 276 21,885
Additions 1 1,134 1,189 22 2,346
Exchange differences 14 83 23 - 120
Reclassified to assets
held for sale - {2,004) (723) (9) (2,736)
Disposals (363) (1,187) (3,054) (134) (4,738)
At 30 June 2006 1,928 9,585 5,209 155 16,877
Depreciation
At 1 July 2004 1,583 8,571 6,416 365 16,935
Disposals (1) {958) {62) {158} (1,179)
Charge for the year 197 1,970 979 75 3,221
Reclassified to assets
held for sale (231) (646) {553) {53) {1,483)
At 1 July 2005 1,548 8,937 6,780 229 17,494
Disposals (332) (1,109) (2,871) {121) {4,433)
Charge for the year 201 2,120 405 38 2,764
Exchange differences 1" 70 16 - 97
Reclassified to assets
held for sale - (2,004) {647) (9) (2,660)
At 30 June 2006 1,428 8,014 3,683 137 13,262
Net book value
At 30 June 2006 500 1,571 1,526 18 3,615
At 30 June 2005 728 2,622 594 47 4,391
At 30 June 2004 776 2,642 1,607 a0 5,115

In relation to the vear ended 30 June 2006 the difference between the additions above of £2,346,000 and capital
expenditure per the cash flow statement of £2,157,000 are capital accruals of £183,000.
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12 investments

Cost and net hook value £°000

Interests in joint ventures

Cost at 1 July 2004 ' 335
Share of retained loss (551j
Additicns in the year 617
Cost at 1 July 2005 401
Share of retained loss (401)
Additions in the year 700
Recilassification of investment to intellectual property {445)
Net book value at 30 June 2006 255
Investment in associates

Cost at 1 July 2004 22
Provisions charged in the year (14)
Loan to associate 105
Cost at 1 July 2005 113
Interest on loan 6
Disposal in the year (119)

Net book value at 30 June 2006 -

Total net book value of investments at 30 June 2006 255
Total net book value of investments at 30 June 2005 514
Total net book value of investments at 30 June 2004 357

The joint ventures {note (iv) of the Company financial statements} have assets of £1,262,876 {2005:
£943,022), liabilities of £3,129,110 (2005: £2,146,981), revenues of £nil (2005; £nil), and expenses of
£802,000 (2005: £1,102,000).

A list of principal Group companies can be found in note (iv) of the Company financial statements.

During the year a loan that had been made by the Group to mobileATM Limited, a joint venture, was
waived in consideration for intellectual property of equivalent value. This loan was held by Monitise
Group Limited at the time of the waiver and had previously been classified as an investment for the
purposes of the consolidated financial statements.

The additions to joint ventures in the year ended 30 June 2005 of £617,000 were represented by
£302,000 cash and £315,000 transfer of fixed assets.

Of the £105,000 loan to associate in the year ended 30 June 2005, £14,000 had been loaned in the year

ended 30 June 2004 but had previously been classified within other debtors. The cash impact of the loan
in the year ended 30 June 2005 was therefore £91,000.
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13 Other financial assets

2006 2005
£'000 £000
Non-current
Loan at fair value 119 -

The financial asset in the year ending 30 June 2006 of £119,000 relates to an outstanding loan to a third party.
The loan is repayable in over one year with interest being charged at a fixed rate of 5% (subject to review).

14 Deferred tax

Depreciation

Provision in excess of
for Share Holiday pay capital
losses options accrual allowances Total
£000 £000 £'000 £000 £000
Assets
At 1 July 2004 - 78 225 780 1,083
{Charge)/credit for the year {note 8) {348) (47) 102 173 (118}
Acquisitions {note 27) 421 - - {6) 415
At 1 July 2005 75 3 327 947 1,380
(Charge)/credit for the year (note 8) (75) 98 - {118) {97)
At 30 June 2006 - 127 327 829 1,283
Customer Maintenance Follow on Trade
backlog contracts consulting names Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000
Liabilities
At July 2004 - - - - -
Acguisitions (note 27) 106 8g 1,121 447 1,763
Credit for the year (note 8) (88) {13) (116) (38) _(255)
At 1 July 2005 18 76 1,005 409 1,508
Credit for the year (note 8) (18) (14) (140) {46) {218)
At 30 June 2006 - 62 865 363 1,290

Deferred tax that relates to the same jurisdictions can be offset and has been presented on the balance
sheet as a deferred tax liability of £57,000 (2005: £158,000). Other deferred tax balances are reflected
on the balance sheet as an asset of £50,000 (2005: £30,000). The net deferred tax liability is £7,000
(2005: £128,000), as shown in the table above.

There is an unrecognised deferred tax asset of £4,260,000 (2005: £7,500,000) in respect of trading
losses at 30 June 2006 (note 8}.

The Group has an unrecognised deferred tax liability of £1,123,000 (2005: £835,000) in relation to
unremitted overseas profits.

The Group anticipates sufficient profits to be made in the relevant geographic locations in order to utilise
the deferred tax assets.
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15 inventories

2006 2005
£000 £000
Finished goods and goods for resale 7,123 8,286
Cost of goods sold during the year amount to £157,830,000 (2005: £231,288,000).
16 Trade and other receivables
2006 2005
£°000 £:000
Trade receivables 58,911 71,269
Other receivables and prepayments 24,673 32,052
83,584 103,321
17 Cash and cash equivalents
2006 2005
£°000 £000
Cash and cash equivalents disclosed as such on the balance
sheet 17,800 40,015
Cash and cash equivalents included within assets and liabilities
classified as held for sale 9,463 (2,369
Cash and cash equivalents per cash flow statement 27,263 37,646
18  Trade and other payables
2006 2005
£'000 £000
Trade payables due to associates T 4
Trade payables 47,402 82,435
Other payables 51,212 60,094
98,621 142,533

Employer pension contributions payable to the pension scheme of £76,285 (2005: £103,823) are

included within other payables.
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19 Provisions

Qther Property Total

£000 £000 £°000
Balance at 1 July 2005 290 4 137 4 427
Provisions made during the year 184 3,015 3,199
Provisions used during the year (258) {3,195) {3,453)
Unwinding of discount - 100 100
Balance at 30 June 2006 216 4,057 4,273
Current 2006 167 1,454 1,621
Non-current 2006 49 2,603 2,652
Balance at 30 June 2006 216 4,057 4,273
Current 2005 290 2,379 2,669
Non-current 2005 - 1,758 1,758
Balance at 30 June 2005 290 4137 4427

The property provision brought forward relates to the property previously vacated in the UK in prior
periods. The provision is being utilised over the length of the lease. The property provision charged in the
year relates to properties vacated in the UK.

Provisions have been discounted at a pre tax rate of 13% (2005: 13%).
Other provisions related {o headcount reductions in the UK and Spain.
20 Financial risk management

Under the transitional provisions permitted under IFRS 1, the Group has taken advantage of the
exemption contained in IFRS 1 whereby on first-time adoption of IFRS there is no requirement to apply
IAS32 “Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation” and 1AS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” on transition. Application of 1AS 32 and IAS 39 from 1 July 2005 does
not have a material impact on the Group’s financial position or result.

The comparative information contained with this note has therefore been disclosed in accordance with
that shown under UK GAAP whereas the current year information is shown under IFRS.

The Group has a committed borrowing facility of £10,000,000 (2005: £nil) which had not been used at the
year end.

The Group does not trade in financial instruments.

Interest rate risk

The Group finances its operations through a mixture of retained profits, cash and the availability of a
borrowing facility. The Group’s cash, other facilities and deposits are at floating rates. Management
manage the interest rate risk on borrowing by using a combination of fixed and floating rates. Other
current and non-current loans incur interest at a fixed rate, while other loan notes incur interest on a
floating rate basis. No interest rate derivative contracts have been entered into. We will continue to
monitor this position to ensure that the interest rate profile is appropriate for the Group.
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20  Financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group. The maximum credit risk exposure
relating to financial assets is represented by carrying value as at the balance sheet date.

Sensitivity analysis

In managing interest rate and currency risks the Group aims to reduce the impact of short-term
fluctuations on the Group’s earnings. Over the long-term however, permanent changes in foreign
exchange and interest rates would have an impact on the consolidated resuilts.

At 30 June 2006, it is estimated that a general increase of one percentage point in interest rates would
increase the Group's profit before tax by approximately £138,000.

It is estimated that a general increase of one percentage point in the value of the Euro against other
foreign currencies would have increased the Group’s profit before tax by approximately £39,000 for the
year ended 30 June 2006. A similar increase in the value of US Dollars and Singapore Dollars would
reduce Group profit before tax by approximately £22,000 and £9,000 respectively. A decrease of 1% in
the other currencies that the Group has exposure to would not have a significant impact on the results for
the period.

Net financial assets
The summarised net financial asset position of the Group is shown below:

2006 2005

£000 £000

Qther current loans (350) (329)
Other non-current loans (625) (584)
Loan notes (380} {441)
Other financial liabilities (206) -
{1,561} (1,354)

Cash (note 17) 27,263 37,646
Net financial assets 25,702 36,252

The other loans represent amounts borrowed against sales made on extended credit terms. The loan
notes are all denominated in Sterling and represent part of the consideration arising as a result of the
acquisition of Relational Concepts Limited, Hughes Rae Limited and Delphis (Holdings) Limited. The
loan notes bear interest based on LIBOR. These amounts are repayable over a fixed term to coincide
with receipts from customers and are secured on these receipts. Loan notes are disclosed within other
payables. Other financial liabilities represent the fair valued amount of any outstanding forward contracts
in place as at 30 June 2006.
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20  Financial risk management (continued)

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities and analysis of ageing are as follows:

2006 2005

£'000 £000

In one year or on demand 936 770
Between one and two years 275 202
Between two and five years 350 292
1,561 1,354

The book value of financial liabilities is not significantiy different from the fair value, considering the

current terms of repayment.

Interest rate profile

The effective interest rate of loans and their maturity periods are as follows:

Effective
Interest  Total 0-1 Year 1-2 Years
Rate £'000 £'000 £'000
For the year ended 30 June 2006
Cash and cash equivalents 4.7% 27,263 27,263 -
Borrowings:
Loan notes 3.5% 380 380 -
Other notes 6% 975 350 625
1,355 730 625
Interest rate management
Financial liabilities accrue interest on the following basis:
Fixed Floating 2006 Fixed Floating 2005
rate Rate Total Rate Rate Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £,000 £'000 £000
Currency
Sterling - 380 380 - 441 441
Euros 975 - 9756 913 - 213
975 380 1,355 913 441 1,354

The weighted average interest rate applicable to fixed rate liabilities is 6% and the weighted average
period for which it is fixed is 30 months from 30 June 2006. The weighted average interest rate applicable

to floating rate liabilities is based on LIBOR.
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20  Financial risk management (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

2006 2006 2005 2005
Book Value Fair Value Book Value Fair Value
£'000 £7000 £000 £000
Financial asset
Cash and cash equivalents 27,263 27,263 37,646 37,646
Financial liabilities
Loan notes 380 380 441 441
Other loans 975 975 913 913
1,355 1,355 1,354 1,354
Derivatives
Foreign exchange contracts 206 208 ~ -

Cash and cash equivalents

The carrying value approximates to fair value because of the short maturify of the instruments.

Loan notes and other loans

The fair value is based on estimated likely cash payments.

Derivatives

Foreign exchange contracts are valued at the spot rate of exchange on 30 June 2006.

Fixed asset investments

The net book value of the Group’s fixed asset investments per note 12 approximates their fair value.

Financial liabilities

The net book value of financial liabilities is not significantly different from the fair value, considering the

current terms of repayment,
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20  Financial risk management {continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s cash deposits at the year end attract interest at a floating rate. They are denominated in the
following currencies:

2006 2005

£'000 £000
Sterling 10,028 16,284
US Dollars 2,631 6,921
Euros 13,060 13,930
South African Rand 310 222
Australian Dollars 282 89
Malaysian Ringitts 92 77
Singapore Dollars 860 123
Cash 27,263 37,646

The majority of cash has been invested during the year in a number of Open Ended Investment
Companies’ funds which usually offer rates of return in excess of those that can be earned on the money
market but which are considered by the Group to have a sound credit rating and therefore constitute a
low risk. The remaining cash eamns interest at market interest rates.

On 1 July 2006 the Group invested £17,043,524 of their surplus funds in Open Ended Investment
Companies. The Group has same day access to these funds.

Currency and exchange rate risk management

A proportion of the Group’s revenues and costs are denominated in currencies other than Sterling
{principally in Euros and US Dollars). In order to reduce the exposure to foreign currency exchange rate
fluctuations, the Group will try to purchase both goods and services in foreign currency to match the
projected revenues in that trading currency. The Group also enters into forward contracts up to four
months forward o reduce the exposure that arises on sales and purchases denominated in foreign
currency.
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20  Financial risk management (continued)

The table below shows the Group’s principal currency exposures that give rise to the net currency gains
and losses recognised in the profit and foss account. Such exposures comprise the monetary assets and
monetary liabilities of the Group that are not denominated in the operating currency of the operating

company involved.

These exposures were as follows:

Functional currency Net foreign currency monetary assets/(liabilities)
of Group’s major 30 June 2006 30 June 2005
operations
Sterling Euro US Dollar Sterling Euro US Dollar
£000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £000
Steriing - (3,689) 2,450 - 5,338 6,245
Euro 1 - - 187 - 224
21 Called up share capital
2006 2006 2005 2005
Number £'000 Number £'000
Authorised
10p Ordinary shares 175,000,000 17,500 175,000,000 17,500
Allotted and fully paid
10p Ordinary shares 153,380,176 15,338 151,063,102 15,106

See note 22 for the movements in allocated and fully paid share capital.
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22  Capital and reserves

Foreign |
Shara Share Capital currency |
Share capital to premium redamption translation Marger Total other Retaineqd Minority
Capital be issued aceount reserve Cther Tesgrve reserve TASRIVeS garpings intergst Total |
£000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 I
Group |
AL 1 July 2004 13,108 9,500 69,665 168 277 - 6,144 6,589 (48,520) 50,342 |
Retained profi for the year - - - - - - - - 1,105 1,105 |
Premyium an issue of shares - - 124 - - - - - - 121 |
tssue of shares on
acquisition of subsidiary 1,082 3.271) - - - - 18,652 18,652 17.363
Exercise of share optians 16 - - - - B - - {47) (31} !
Share oplions charge - - - - - - - - 820 - 820 !
Los$ on transiation of
foreign subsigiaries - - - - - {85} - 185} - - (85}
Release of reserve on
exercise of share options - - - - 88) - - (88} 68 -
Dividends paid - - - - - - - - {5.176) {5,1786)
Dividends paid to minonty |
interest - - - - - - - - - 188) {88) |
Share of profit of minority |
interest - - - - - - - - - 104 104
At 1 July 2005 15,106 6,229 69,786 168 209 (8%) 24,796 25,088 {51,750) 16 64,475 |
!
Retained profit for the year - - - - - - - - 3,082 3,982
Premium on issue of shares - - 598 - - - 598
Issue of shares on
acquisition of subsidiaries 167 12,426} - - - - 2,208 2,208 51
Exercise of share options 65 - - - - - - - 82) - {17)
Lass on translation of
foreign subsidianes - - - - - 267 - 267 287
Share options charge - - - - - - . - 828 828
Dividends paid - - - - - - - - (5,754} {5,754}
Dividend paid to minotity
interest - - - - - - - - - (60 (60)
Share of profit of minority
interest - - - - - - - - - 189 189
At 30 June 2006 15,338 3,803 70,385 168 209 182 27.004 27,563 {52,776) 145 54,458
The share capital issued at nominal value in the year relates to the exercise of share options
{649,425 shares) and £2,375,000 of previously deferred consideration on the acquisition of CSTIM
Limited (1,667,649 shares). On the exercise of share options, £407,000 (2005; £87,000) was received.
Share capital to be issued of £3,803,000 relates to the deferred consideration on the prior year
acquisition of CSTIM Limited and is based on the business acquired achieving certain financial targets.
£3,303,000 of the total share capital is to be issued within one year, the relevant targets having been
settled, and £500,000 is to be issued after one year up to January 2008.
The premium arising on the exercise of 649,425 share options was £599,000 {2005: £121,000).
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22  Capital and reserves (continued)

The capital redemption reserve is used to maintain the Company’s capital following the purchase and
cancellation of its own shares.

When share options are exercised using the Morse Employee Benefit Trust, the difference hetween
market value of the shares and the exercise price of the options is charged to the profit and loss account
reserve. Simultaneously, a transfer from other reserves to the profit and loss account reserve is made for
the related charge recorded when the options were granted under the Morse Group company share
option plan, or the Diagonal employee share plans.

The foreign currency translation reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries. Differences arising prior to the translation
to IFRS {i.e. 1 July 2004) have not been recognised under the provisions of IFRS 1.

Merger relief on the £2,208,000 share premium arising on the 1,667,649 shares issued as consideration
on the prior year acquisition of CSTIM Limited has been recognised in accordance with s131 of the
Companies Act 1985.

23  Capital commitments

Monitise Group Limited, a subsidiary entity, had a capital commitment of £200,000 (2005: £nil) at the year
end.

24  Operating lease commitments

Land and Land and
buildings Other buildings Other
2006 2006 2005 2005
£000 £000 £000 £000
Group
Annual non-cancellable commitments
for operating leases which expire:
Within one year 3,512 1,384 4,262 1,218
Between 2 and 5 years 8,040 1,018 8,157 694
After 5 years 2,484 - 3,234 -

14,036 2,402 15,653 1,912
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25 Assets and liabilities held for sale

On 12 July 2005 Morse plc announced the disposal of its business in France, Morse France SAS

(note 26) and on 24 July 2006 Morse pic announced the disposal of its business in Germany and Austria,
Morse GmbH and Morse IT Solutions Austria GmbH (note 29). As such the following assets and
liabilities are classified as held for sale in the balance sheet.

2006 2005

£'000 £000
Goodwili 1,557 -
Property, plant and equipment 76 527
Inventories 505 168
Trade receivables 14,102 14,198
Other receivables and prepayments 8,697 4,408
Cash and cash equivalents 9,463 -
Assets held for sale 34,400 19,329
Trade payables (14,935) (4,756)
Other payables {13,148) (8,782)
Cash and cash equivalents - (2,369)
Tax payable (93) (43)
Liabilities held for sale (28,176) (15,950)
Net assets held for sale 6,224 3,379

26  Disposal of a subsidiary

On 12 July 2005 Morse plc announced its disposal of its business in France, Morse France SAS, for a
maximum consideration of €1 and a further €1.0 (approximately £690,000) million payable in cash in the
period to 30 June 2007 if the business achieves certain financial targets. The sale of the business
incurred a loss of £7,058,000 analysed as follows:

£'000
Assets
Property, plant and equipment 527
Inventories 198
Trade receivables 14,198
Other receivables and prepayables 4,406
Cash and cash equivalents 86
Trade payables {4,588)
Other payables (8,782)
Net assets on disposal 6,045
Costs of disposal 1,013
Loss on disposal of France 7,058

The disposal of subsidiary, net of cash disposed of £1,099,000, per the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year ended 30 June 2006 comprises costs of disposal of £1,013,000 and cash and cash
equivalents of £86,000.
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27  Acquisitions

The Group purchased Diagonal Plc, an IT consultancy services company on 27 August 2004 for a
consideration of £45,715,000 before costs and this has been accounted for as an acquisition in the year
ended 30 June 2005. All of the voting rights were acquired. The fair vaiue table is presented below:

Accounting
policy
Book Value alignment Fair value
£000 £000 £000
Goodwill {note 10) 18,473 (18,473) -
Intangible fixed assets (note 10) - 8,143 8,143
Property, plant and equipment {note 11} 1,873 - 1,873
Inventories 812 - 812
Trade receivables 12,701 - 12,701
Deferred tax asset 415 - 415
Trade payables (12,645) (273) {12,918)
Deferred tax liability - (1,763) {1,763)
Cash 8,738 - - 8,738
Net assets acquired 30,367 (12,366) 18,001
Goodwill 29,625
Consideration 47,626
Consideration satisfied by:
Cash 28,350
Share capital issued 17,365
Cost of acquisition 1,911
47 626

The book value of the assets and liabilities has been taken from the management accounts of Diagonal
Plc as of 27 August 2004 (being the date of the acquisition).

The accounting policy adjustments are as follows:

* The immediate write off of goodwill on acquisition.

¢ The capitalisation of intangible assets on acquisition per IFRS 2 “Business Combinations”.

¢ A holiday pay accrual as per IAS 19 “Employee Benefits”.

+ A deferred tax [iability on the capitalisation of intangible assets.

¢ The costs of acquisition relate to the cost of professional fees, incurred in refation to the acquisition.

From the date of acquisition to 30 June 2005 the acquisition contributed £44,239,000 to revenue and
£9,449,000 loss fo loss before tax and interest.

Except for the acquisition costs, Diagonal Plc has not had a significant impact on the cash flow statement
of Morse plc for the year ended 30 June 2005.
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28  Related party transactions

During the year ended 30 June 2006 the Group made sales of £93,062 (2005: £109,000) to its associate
companies and made purchases of £28,344 (2005: £27,000) from them. As at 30 June 20086, this had
resulted in outstanding frade debtor and trade creditor balances of £69,899 {2005: £75,000) and

£6,956 (2005: £3,500) respectively. As at 30 June 2006 there was a loan outstanding to an associate
company of £nil (2005; £105,000). An interest charge of £6,000 (£2005: £nil) was charged in the year to
30 June 2006.

During the year ended 30 June 2006 the Group made sales of £923,000 (2005: £nil} to its joint ventures.
As at 30 June 2006, this had resulted in an outstanding trade debtor of £127,000 (2005: Enil).
Morse Group Limited has borne the costs of the Directors of Morse plic during the year.

Compensation of key management personnel is as follows:

2006 2005
£'000 £000
Short term employee benefits 2,939 2,294
Share based payment 174 -
3413 2,294

29 Post balance sheet events

On 24 July 2006 Morse plc announced the disposal of its business in Germany and Austria. Morse
GmbH and Morse IT Solutions Austria GmbH were sold for 2 maximum consideration of €8,500,000
(£6,506,000). An initial consideration of €7,125,000 (£4,880,000) is payable in cash with €2,375,000
(£1,626,000) of deferred consideration payable in cash in 90 days, subject to the collection of Morse
Germany’s receivables. As such the result of this operation has been classified as discontinued in the
income statements for the years ended 30 June 2005 and 30 June 2006 and its assets and liabilities
have been classified as held for sale on the balance sheet as at 30 June 2606.

30 Adoption of IAS 32 and IAS 39

In accordance with the option allowed by IFRS 1 the Group has adopted IAS 32 and IAS 39 prospectively
from 1 July 2005. The impact on the Group’s opening balance sheet at 1 July 2005, by balance sheet
category, is outlined below:

30 June Effect of IAS 32 1 July

2005 and 1AS 38 2005

£'000 £000 £'000

Trade and other receivables 103,321 - 103,321

The revaluation of foreign exchange contracts to 1 July 2005 fair value had a £nil impact.
31 Accounting estimates and judgements
Details of significant accounting estimates and judgements have been disclosed under the relevant note

or accounting policy for each area where disclosure is required. Principally, these are the vaiuation of
acquired intangible assets (note 10), goodwill impairment testing (note 10} and provisions {(nate 19).
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32 Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net funds

Group Group
2006 2005
£000 £000
Decrease in cash in the year (10,426) (24,876)
Movement in other loans (62) (8913)
Movement in loan notes 61 88
Exchange rate fluctuations 43 21
~Movement in other financial liabilities ~ (206) -
Change in net debt {10,590} {25,722)
Net funds at 1 July 36,292 62,014
Net funds at 30 June 25,702 36,252
33  Analysis of changes in net funds
Exchange
rate Other At 30 June
Cash Flows fluctuations movements 2006
£'000 £000 £000 £'000
Cash at bank (10,426) 43 - 27,263
Other loans (62) - - (975)
Loan notes 61 - - (380)
QOther financial liabilities - - (206) {206)
Net funds {10,427) 43 (206) 25,702

Other movements relate to the forward contracts in place at 30 June 2006 which have been fair valued at

that date.
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34  Explanation of transition to Adopted IFRSs

As stated in note 1, these are the Group's first consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with

Adopted IFRSs.

The accounting policies set out on page 45 to page 53 have been applied in preparing the financial statements

for the year ended 30 June 2006, the comparative information presented in these financial statements for the
year ended 30 June 2005 and in the preparation of an opening iIFRS balance sheet at 1 July 2004.

In preparing its opening IFRS balance sheet, the Group has adjusted amounts previously reported in financial

statements prepared in accordance with its old basis of accounting (UK GAAP). An explanation of how the
transition from UK GAAP to adopted IFRSs has affected the Group's financial position, financial performance
and cash flows is set out in the following tables and the notes that accompany the tables.

Summary of IFRS impact

The impact on the profit for the year ended 30 June 2005 is detailed in the table below:

Audited IFRS Audited
UK GAAP Adjustments IFRS
£000 £'000 £'000
Group revenue 429,531 - 429,531
Cost of sales {341,606) - (341,6086)
Gross profit 87,925 - 87,925
Distribution expenses (50,385) (1,468) {51,853)
Administrative expenses before goodwill
amortisation and exceptional restructuring costs (27,288) (521) (27,809)
Exceptional restructuring costs {6,072) - {6,072)
Goodwill amortisation (23,230) 23,230 -
Administrative expenses (56,590) 22,709 {33,881)
Operating profit before goodwill
amortisation and exceptional restructuring costs 10,252 {1,989} 3,263
Exceptional restructuring costs (6,072) - {6,072)
Goodwill amortisation {23,230) 23,230 -]
Group operating {loss)/profit before net
financing income {19,050) 21,241 2,191
Financial income 1,954 - 1,954
Financiai expense {685) - (685}
Net financing income 1,269 - 1,269
Share of loss of jointly controlled entities and
associates (551) - {551}
(Loss)profit before taxation (18,332) 21,241 2,909
Taxation for the period (2,010) 310 {1,700}
{Loss)profit for the period {(20,342) 21,551 1,209
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent (20,448) 21,551 1,105
Minority interests 104 - 104
(20,342) 21,551 1,209
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34  Explanation of transition to Adopted IFRSs (continued)

The impact on net assets for the year ended 30 June 2005 is detailed in the table below:

Audited IFRS Audited
UK GAAP Adjustments IFRS
Notes £'000 £'000 £'000
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment c 4,918 (527) 4,391
Goodwill e 37,895 17,123 55,018
Ofther intangibles d - 7,044 7.044
Investments 514 - 514
Deferred tax assets f - 30 30
Total non-current assets 43,327 23,670 66,997
Current assets
Inventories g 8,494 (198) 8,296
Assets classified as held for sale h - 19,329 19,329
Trade and other receivables due within one year i 118,115 (14,794) 103,321
Trade and other receivables due after more than cne year i 4,832 (4,832) -
Total trade and other receivables 122,947 (19,626) 103,321
Cash and cash equivalents 37,646 2,369 40,015
Total current assefs 169,087 1,874 170,961
Total assets 212,414 25,544 237,958
Liahilities
Current liabilities
Interest bearing loans and borrowings (329) - (329)
Trade and cther payables k (154,940) 12,407 {142,533)
Tax payable | (9,545) 43 (9,502)
Liabilities classified as held for sale h - (15,950} (15,950)
Provisions j - (2,669) {2,669)
Total current liabilities (164,814) (6,169) {170,983)
Non-current liabilities
Interest bearing loans and borrowings (584) - (584)
Trade and other payables k {3,959) 3,959 -
Deferred tax liability m - (1568) (158)
Provisions j (4,427) 2,669 (1,758)
Total non-current liabilities (8,970) 6,470 (2,500)
Net assets 38,630 25,845 64,475
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 15,106 - 15,106
Share capital to be issued 8,229 - 6,229
Share premium account 69,786 - 69,786
Other reserves n 25,173 {85) 25,088
Retained eamings n (77,680) 25,930 (51,750)
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders 38,614 25,845 64,459
Minority interest 16 - 16
Total equity 38,630 25,845 64,475
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34  Explanation of transition to Adopted IFRSs (continued)

The impact on net assets for the year ended 30 June 2004 is detailed in the table below:

Audited IFRS Audited
UK GAAP Adjustments IFRS
Notes £'000 £000 £'000
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5115 - 5,115
Goodwill 25,393 - 25,393
Investments 357 - 357
Deferred tax assets o} - 1,083 1,083
Total non-current assets 30,865 1,083 31,948
Current assets
inventories 12,324 - 12,324
Trade and other receivables due within one year p 108,173 6,261 114,434
Trade and other receivables due after more than one year p 7,041 {7,041} - |
Total trade and other receivables 115,214 (780} 114,434
Cash and cash equivalents 66,088 - 66,088
Total current assets 193,626 (780) 192,846
Total assets 224,491 303 224,794
Liabilities
Current liabilities
interest bearing foans and borrowings (3,545} - {3,545)
Trade and other payables q {154,388) (6,197} {160,585}
Tax payable (9,1686) - (2,166}
Provisions r - (591) (5913
Total current liabilities {167,099) (6,788) (173,887)
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables (8,542) 8,542 -
Deferred tax liability - - -
Provisions r {1,156) 591 {565)
Total non-current liabilities {9,698) 9,133 (565)
Net assets 47,694 2,648 50,342
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 13,108 - 13,108
Share capital to be issued 9,500 - 9,500
Share premium account 69,665 - 69,665
Other reserves 6,589 - 6,589
Retained eamings S {51,168) 2,648 (48,520)
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders 47,694 2,648 50,342
Mincrity interest - - -
Total equity 47,694 2,648 50,342
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34  Explanation of transition to Adopted IFRSs (continued)

Explanatory notes relating to the IFRS adjustments applied to the consolidated financial
statements for the years ended 30 June 2005 and 30 June 2004

(a} Total operating costs

£000

Reversal of amertisation of goodwill 23,230
Holiday pay charge (IAS 19) (70)
Adiustment to the amortisation of other intangibles (1,099)
Share options charge (IFRS 2) _(820)
21,241

In accordance with IFRS 3, the goodwill amortisation charge recognised in the June 2005 financial statements of
£23,230,000 has been reversed in order to freeze the goodwill value at the brought forward net book value as at 1
July 2004. The share-based payments charge of £820,000 has been computed in accordance with IFRS 2 using a
Black-Scholes model.

A holiday pay accrual not previously required under UK GAAP has been calculated in accordance with IAS 19.

The amortisation of other intangible assets of £1,099,000 arises under IFRS 3 on the acquisition of Diagonal
Limited {formerly Diagonal Pic).

{b) Taxation

£'000

Deferred tax on intangible assets 255
Deferred tax asset under IAS 12 an employee benefits (47)
Deferred tax asset under IAS 12 en the holiday pay accrual 102
310

(¢} Property, plant and equipment
The adjustment of £527,000 represents the reclassification of fixed assets held by the French subsidiary disposed
of in July 2005 to “assets and liabilities held for sale” (note h).

{d) Other intangible assets

A valuation as prescribed by IFRS 3 was performed on the goodwill arising on the acquisition of Diagonal Limited
{formerly Diagonal Plc) and £6,380,000 of intangible assets were re-analysed from goodwill. The charge for
amortisation in the period was £1,099,000. On these tangible assets a taxable assets benefit was generated of
£1,763,000. The net increase in other intangible assets is therefore £7,044,000.

(e) Goodwill

Goodwill has been frozen at the brought forward written down value as at 1 July 2004 and this has been taken as
the deemed cost. The UK GAAP amortisation charge for the year ended 30 June 2005 was reversed to increase
goodwill and profit for the year by £23,230,000.

As per note {d) £6,380,000 has been re-analysed from goodwill to other intangible assets. The completion balance

sheet at the acquisition of Diagonal Limited (formerly Diagonal Plc) has been adjusted by £273,000 to account for
the holiday accrual required under 1AS 18. This has resulted in an increase of goodwill at acquisition.
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34  Explanation of transition to Adopted IFRSs (continued)

{f) Deferred tax assets

£°000
Deferred tax asset under IAS 12 on employee benefits 3
Deferred tax asset on a holiday pay accrual 327
Reclassification from trade and other receivables due within one year 75
Reclassification from trade and other receivables due after more than one year 947
1,380

Deferred tax that relates to the same jurisdiction can be offset and has been presented on the balance sheet as a
deferred tax liability of £158,000. Deferred tax asset balances are reflected on the balance sheet of £30,000. The
net liability is £128,000.

{g) Inventories
The adjustment of £198,000 represents the reclassification of inventories held by the French subsidiary disposed of
in July 2005 to “assets and liabilities held for sale”.

{h) Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale
The assets and liabilities of Morse France SAS have been reclassified on the balance sheet as “asseis and
liabilities held for sale”.

The assets and liabilities held in France were as follows:

£000
Assets

Fixed assets 527
Inventories ‘ 198
Trade and other receivables due within one year 18,604
18,329

Liabilities
Cash and cash equivalents {2,369)
Trade and other payables {13,538)
Income tax payable (43)
{15,950)

(i) Trade and other receivables

The reduction is caused by the reclassification of the receivables in Morse France SAS of £18,604,000 (note h) and
the reclassification of the deferred tax asset of £75,000 due within one year and £847,000 due after more than ane
year {note f). A reclassification of £3,885,000 from debtors due after more than one year has also been made.

(i) Provisions

A reclassification of provisions from due over more than cne year to due within one year has been made of
£2,669,000.
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34  Explanation of transition to Adopted IFRSs (continued)

(k) Trade and other payables

£'000
Holiday pay accrual (IAS 19) (820)
Holiday pay accrual required on acquisition of Diagonal (note e) (273)
Reclassification of trade and other payables from Morse France SAS 13,538
Dividend proposed 3,921
Reclassification of accruals and deferred income from
falling due after one year to within one year (3,959)
12,407

The holiday pay liability is accrued in accordance with 1AS 19.
The trade and other payables of Morse France SAS of £13,538,000 have been reclassified (note h).
Dividends are recognised when approved in accordance with [AS 10.

{1} Income tax
Income tax of £43,000 has been reclassified (note h).

(m) Deferred tax liability

Per note (d) a deferred tax liability of £1,763,000 was generated on the acquisition of intangible assets of which
£255,000 was released in the year giving a net adjustment of £1,508,000. All of the deferred tax that relates to the
UK is presented on the balance sheet as a net liability of £158,000. Deferred tax asset balances are reflected on
the balance sheet of £30,000.

{n} Retained earnings

£'000
Holiday pay accrual (IAS 19) - {note k) (820)
Reversal of goodwill amortisation (IFRS 3) - (note &) 23,230
Amortisation of other intangible assets (note d) (1,099)
Dividend proposed (note k) 3,921
Deferred tax on intangible assets (note m) 255
Deferred tax asset under IAS 12 on employee benefits (note f) 3
Deferred tax asset on the holiday accrual {note f) 327
Reclassification to other reserves from 1 July 2004 of translation
differences arising from the {ranslation of foreign subsidiaries 85
25,930

(o) Deferred tax asset and trade receivables

An amount of £780,000 has been reclassified from trade and other receivables due within one year. The creation of
a deferred tax asset under IAS 12 on employee benefits of £78,000 and holiday pay accrual of £225,000 gives a
total adjustment of £1,083,000.

(p) Trade and other receivables

£000
Deferred tax — reclassification to fixed assets (note o) (780)
Reclassification of trade and other receivables due after one year to due within one year 7,041
6,261
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34  Explanation of transition to adopted IFRSs (continued])

{q) Trade and other payables

£000

Holiday pay accrual {IAS 19) {750)
Dividend proposed 3,095
Reclassification of accruals and deferred income due after one year to due within one year (8,542}
{6,197)

The holiday pay accrual is in accordance with IAS 19. Dividends are recognised when approved in accordance with
IAS 10.

{r) Provisions

Provisions of £591,000 have been reclassified from non-current liabilities to current liabilities.

{s} Retained Earnings

£'000
Holiday pay accrual {IAS 19) {(750)
Dividend proposed 3,085
Deferred tax (note 0} 78
Deferred tax (note o) 225
2,648
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Company balance sheet

as at 30 June 2006
Company Company
2006 2005
Note £000 £000
Fixed assets
Investments fv 147,021 147,921
147,024 147,921
Current assets
Debtors v 25,218 22,765
Cash at bank and in hand - 10
Total current assets 25,218 22,775
Creditors — amounts falling
due within one year vi (42,229) {38,556)
Net current liabilities (17,011) (15,781)
Total net assets 130,010 132,140
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital vif 15,338 15,106
Share capital to be issued ix 3,803 6,229
Share premium account ix 70,385 69,786
QOther reserves 27,372 25,164
Profit and loss account ix 13,112 15,855
Total equity shareholders’
funds viii 130,010 132,140

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 30 August 2006 and signed on its
behalf by:

D Mclintyre

Director
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(i)

Accounting policies

Accounting convention

The financial statemenis are prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with
the Companies Act 1985 and applicable accounting standards, using the following principal
accounting policies which have been consistently applied. The accounting policies below cover
items which are considered material in relation to the Company’s financial statements.

As permitted by section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, the profit and loss account of the
Company is not presented as part of these financial statements. The profit after taxation
attributable to Morse pic for the year and dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
was £3,011,000 (2005: £4,441,000).

The Company has adopted FRS 21 (IAS 10) “Events after the balance sheet date” for the first
time in these accounts. The principle impact of this standard is on dividend recognition. Previously
dividends were recognised in the period for which they were declared as relating to, now
dividends are recognised during the period in which they are deciared. The impact on the 2005
comparatives is to reduce the dividend creditor by £3,921,000 and the dividend recognised within
the profit and loss account by the same amount.

The Company has adopted FRS 26 (JAS 39) “Financial Instruments and Measurement” and FRS
25 (IAS 32) “Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation” for the first time in these
accounts. This has had no impact on these accounts.

The Company has adopted FRS 28 “Corresponding amounts” for the first time in these accounts.

Investments

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost less provision for any impairment in
value. Trade investments are held at cost less provision for any impairment in value.

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an undertaking in which the Company has a long-term interest, usually from 20%
to 50% of the equity voting rights, and over which it exercises significant influence. A joint venture
is an undertaking in which the Company has a long-term interest and over which it exercises joint
control. The Company’s share of the profits less losses of associates and of joint ventures is
included in the consolidated profit and loss account and its interest in their net assets is included
in investments in the consolidated balance sheet.

Cash flow statement

The Company has taken advantage of the exemptions permitted by Financial Reporting Standard
(FRS) No. 1 (Revised 1996) “Cash Flow Statement” not to produce a cash flow statement, on the
basis that the cash flows of the Company are included within the consolidated Group cash flow
statement of Morse plc, in its published financial statements.
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(i)

Accounting policies (continued}

Interests in own shares

Interests in own shares are accounted for in accordance with UITF abstract 38 “Accounting for
ESOP trusts” which requires the assets and liabilities of the Group’s ESOP trust to be recognised
in the financial statements where there is defacto control of those assets and liabilities. The
Company's own shares held in the ESOP trust are deducted from shareholders’ funds until they
vest unconditionally with employees.

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated but not reversed
at the balance sheet date where transactions or events that result in an obligation to pay more tax
in future or a right to pay less tax in future have occurred at the balance sheet date, except as
otherwise required by FRS 19. A net deferred tax asset is regarded as recoverable and therefore
recognised only when, on the basis of all available evidence, it can be regarded as more likely
than not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying
timing differences can be deducted.

Taxation

The tax charge for the periods presented comprises current and deferred tax. Taxation is
recognised in the income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly
in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the period using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of prior periods.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary
differences between the carrying amount for financial reporting purposes and those for taxation
purposes. The following temporary differences are not provided for: goodwill not deductible for
tax purposes; initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit other than in a business combination and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries
to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement
of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date. A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised.

Dividends

Dividends receivable are recognised when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.
Dividends payable to the Company's shareholders are recognised as a liability and deducted from
shareholders’ equity in the period in which the shareholders’ right to receive payment is
established.
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(i) Accounting policies (continued)
Foreign exchange

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Sterling at the actual exchange
rate at the time of the transaction or, where forward foreign currency contracts have been taken
out, at contracted rates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the
balance sheet date are translated at the rates ruling at that date. These translation differences are
dealt with in the profit and loss account.

Cash |

Cash comprises cash in hand and deposits repayable on demand, less overdrafts payable on
demand.

(ii} Dividends paid and proposed

2006 2005
£'000 £000
Declared and paid during the vear:
Equity dividend on ordinary shares: |
Final dividend for 2005: 2.6p (2004: 2.35p) 3,921 3,085
Interim dividend for 2006: 1.2p (2005: 1.15p) 1,833 1,708 |
Under provision from previous years - 373
5,754 5,176
Proposed for approval at AGM
{not recognised as a liability as at 30 June):
Equity dividend on ordinary shares:
Final dividend for 2006: 2.75p (2005: 2.6p) 4,218 3,921

(iii) Information regarding employees, Directors and their interests
{a) Directors’ remuneration

The cast of the Directors’ emoluments are borne by Morse Group Limited, a subsidiary company, details
of which can be found on page 35.
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(iii) Information regarding employees, Directors and their interests (continued)

(b) Employees

2006 2005
Number Number
Average monthly number of persons employed
(including Directors) by the Group during the year:
Management and administration 2 2
Sales and technical staff - -
2 2
{c} Staff costs {inctuding Directors)
2006 2005
£000 £000
Wages and salaries 54 b4
Social security cosls - -
Other pension costs - -
54 54
The Company has no pension costs.
(iv) Fixed asset investments
Cost and net book amount £'000
Interests in subsidiary undertakings
Cost at 1 July 2005 and 30 June 2006 147,021
Trade investments
Cost at 1 July 2005 and 30 June 2006 36
Provision at 1 July 2005 and 30 June 2006 {36)
Total net book value at 1 July 2005 and 30 June 2006 -
Interests in joint ventures
Cost at 1 July 2005 900
Transterred to subsidiary {900)
Cost at 30 June 2006 -
Total net book value of investments at 30 June 2006 147,021
Total net book value of investments at 30 June 2005 147,921
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(iv) Fixed asset investments (continued)

The Company’s principal undertakings included in the consolidated financial statements are as foliows:

Subsidiary undertakings

Morse Group Limited

Morse GmbH*

Morse Spain SL *

Morse Computer Group Limited *

Morse Enginegering Limited *

Morse Solutions Limited *

Appliance Technology Limited *

CSTIM Management Consultancy (PTY) Limited*

CS8TIM Limited

Diagonal Consulting Limited*

Diagonal Solutions Limited*

SkillsHub Limited

Monitise Limited*™

Other trading undertakings

mobile ATM Limited*

*

Indirectly held through subsidiary companies

Principal activity

Sale of IT solutions and
professional services

Sale of IT solutions and
professional services

Sale of IT solutions and
professional services

Sale of IT solutions and
professional services

Sale of IT solutions and
professional services

Sale of IT solutions and
professional services

Sale of IT solutions and
professional services

Supply of management
consultancy services

Provision of advisory
services to companies
engaged in investment

management

Sale of 1T solutions and
professional services

Sale if IT solutions and
praofessional services

Placement of external
consultants in the
financial services

industry

Supply of mobile phone
initiated services

Supply of mobile phone
initiated services

**  Monitise Limited was formed during the year ended 30 June 2006

*** Disposed of since year end

Percentage of
Ordinary shares
and voting rights
held

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

51%

B5%

50%

Country of
registration and
incorporation

England and Wales

Germany™*

Spain

Ireland

ireland

Ireland

Ireland

South Africa

England and Wales

England and Wales

England and Wales

England and Wales

Engiand and Wales

England and Wales
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(v} Debtors

2006 2005
£000 £000
Amounts due from Group undertakings 25,173 22,679
Other debtors 45 86
25,218 22,765
(vi} Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2006 2005
£000 £'000
t.oan notes 380 441
Amounts due to Group undertakings 41,234 37,348
Other creditors 471 620
Corporation tax 100 1M
Accruals and deferred incoime 44 46
42,229 38,556
(vii) Called up share capital
2006 2006 2005 2005
Number £000 Number £000
Authorised
10p Ordinary shares 175,000,000 17,500 175,000,000 17,500
Allotted and fully paid
10p Ordinary shares 153,380,176 15,338 151,063,102 15,106
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(viii) Reconciliation of movements in equity shareholders’ funds

2006 2005
£000 £:000
Profit for the vear 3,011 4,441
Dividends (5,754) (5,176)
Retained loss for the year (2,743) (735)
Issue of share capital 3,039 20,771
Movement in share capital to be issued {2,426) {3,271)
Net {reduction)/increase to equity shareholders’
funds {2,130) 16,765
Opening equity shareholders’ funds 132,140 115,375
Closing equity shareholders’ funds 130,010 132,140
(ix) Capital and reserves
—_
Foareign
Share Share Capital currancy Total
Share capital to premium redemption translation Merger other Retained
capital be issued account rgsarva Othar reservy reserva | reserves warnlngs Total
£'000 £000 £900 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Company
At 1 July 2005 15,108 6,229 69,786 168 200 24,796 25,164 15,8585 132,140
Exercise of share options 85 - - - - - 65
Profit for the year 3,011 3011
Dividends - (5,754) {5,754}
Prermium on issue of shiares 559 - 585
Issue of shares on
acquisition of subsidiaries 167 {2,426) £2,208 2,208 {51)
At 30 June 2006 15,338 3.803 70,385 168 200 27,004 27,372 13,112 130,010

The share capital issued at nominal value in the year relates to the exercise of share options

(649,425 shares) and £2,375,000 of previously deferred consideration on the acquisition of CSTIM
Limited (1,667,649 shares).

Share capital to be issued of £3,803,000 relates to the deferred consideration on the prior year
acquisition of CSTIM Limited and is based on the business acquired achieving certain financial targets.
£3,303,000 of the total share capital is to be issued within one year, the relevant targets having been

settled, and £500,000 is to be issued after one year up to January 2008.

The premium arising on the exercise of 649,425 share options (note 21) was £599,000.

The capital redemption reserve is used to maintain the Company’s capital following the purchase and
cancellation of its own shares.

When share options are exercised using the Morse Employee Benefit Trust, the difference between
market value of the shares and the exercise price of the options is charged to the profit and loss account
reserve. Simultaneously, a transfer from other reserves to the profit and loss account reserve is made for
the related charge recorded when the options were granted under the Morse Group company share

option plan.
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(ix) Capital and reserves (continued)

Merger relief on the £2,208,000 share premium arising on the 1,667,649 shares issued as consideration
on the prior year acquisition of CSTIM Limited has been recognised in accordance with s131 of the
Companies Act 1985.

(x) Post balance sheet events

On 24 July 20086 Morse plc announced the disposal of its business in Germany and Austria. Morse
GmbH and Morse IT Solutions Austria GmbH were sold for a maximum consideration of €9,500,000
(£6,506,000). An initiat consideration of €7,125,000 (£4,880,000) is payable in cash with €2,375,000
(£1,626,000) of deferred consideration payable in cash in 90 days, subject to the collection of Morse
Germany’s receivables. This disposal has not had a significant impact on the investments held by the
Company.
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5 year summary

Year ended 30 June
Prepared under UK GAAP Prepared under IFRS

B I Cao0s ~ 5606

£'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000

Turnover , . ... .. 465180 = 351343 390,008 .. 429531 367,120
Gross profit L L...o..®sawvT 0 69568 0 75481 | 87925 85040
_Total operating profit * , .o...2182 9165 7470 | 8263 6527
_Operating profitifloss} =~ e oo f2788) 0 (7A13) (a4 2191 12,837
Net assets 80,248 57,745 47,694 64,475 64,458

* Before goodwill amortisation and exceptional items under UK GAAP

* Before exceptional restructuring costs, impairment and exceptional frading balance refeases under IFRS
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